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BlackRock Global Investment Series -
Global Allocation Portfolio

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Joanne Fitzgerald
1855
35
35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg,
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

03 (6775) 1000
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2019 12 10
2020 15
BlackRock Fund Management
Company S.A.
2019 17
BlackRock Asset Management
Ireland Limited
2019 17
2019 17
2019 17
State Street Bank International
GmbH, Luxembourg Branch
1996 10
1997
10 13
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2002 29
J.P. Morgan SE, Luxembourg
Branch
1998 15
BlackRock Operations
(Luxembourg) S.a r.1l.
2016 18
BlackRock Investment
Management (UK) Limited
2010 13
2015 15
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1915 1990
1991 1993 12 1994 10 28 1995 21 1997
10 28 1998 18 15 2003 11 2005 2006 17
2009 30 2015 23
1915
50 6,411 2022
12.5 1,603 40,000
1990
2006 10
2022
1855 35
BlackRock Group Limited- 35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855 40,000 100.00
Luxembourg Branch Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg

Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier

1134 1710
1779 1787 1984
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www.blackrock.com/corporate/sustainability
https://www.blackrock.com/corporate/about-us/investment-stewardship#our-responsibility
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2022 31 3,344,025
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2022 31 39,457
2022 31 477,318
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2022
376,495 ,743.04 100.87
376,495 ,743.04 100.87
3,257.590.17 0.87
373,238,152.87
47,853 100.00
2022

BlackRock Global Funds -
Global Allocation Fund X
Class non-distributing
share

3,087,935.68 | 75.34 | 232,631,031.63 | 88.05| 271,892,736.54 | 72.85

BlackRock Global Funds -
Global Allocation Fund X
Class non-distributing
share AUD hedged

4,104,018.41 | 15.50 | 63,619,629.59 | 17.33 | 71,118,104.55| 19.05

BlackRock Global Funds -
Global Allocation Fund X
Class non-distributing
share JPY hedged

3,165,700.00 | 12.50 | 39,579,781.58 | 10.58 | 33,484,901.95 8.97
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10
2022
MICROSOFT CORP 2.0 UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 0.9
APPLE INC 1.6 MASTERCARD INC CLASS A 0.8
ALPHABET INC CLASS C 1.3 ENBRIDGE INC 0.8
CONOCOPHILLIPS 1.1 SIEMENS N AG 0.8
AMAZON COM INC 1.1 10 | EQT CORP 0.7
2022

2022
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2010 20 2016 17
2022
(2013 31 ) 205,188,992.17 | 26,307,280,686 11.82 1,515
2014 31 175,576,004.04 | 22,510,599,478 12.76 1,636
2015 31 295,225,104.70 | 37,850,810,674 13.25 1,699
2016 31 316,958,633.62 | 40,637,266,416 12.38 1,587
2017 31 289,263,321.67 | 37,086,450,471 13.60 1,744
2018 31 296,696,326.17 | 38,039,435,978 15.70 2,013
2019 31 245,792,863.19 | 31,513,102,990 14.50 1,859
10
2020 31 200,862,883.23 | 25,752,630,259 16.29 2,089
11
2021 31 230,686,748.08 | 29,576,347,971 19.46 2,495
12
2022 31 315,101,134.19 | 40,399,116,414 19.57 2,509
2021 333,310,890.73 | 42,733,789,300 20.64 2,646
346,313,628.04 | 44,400,870,251 20.67 2,650
351,977,141.46 | 45,126,989,307 20.81 2,668
341,723,072.37 | 43,812,315,109 20.26 2,598
10 346,357,285.55 | 44,406,467,580 20.68 2,651
11 335,290,849.68 | 42,987,639,837 20.36 2,610
12 338,820,113.51 | 43,440,126,753 20.68 2,651
2022 315,101,134.19 | 40,399,116,414 19.57 2,509
310,580,901.88 | 39,819,577,430 19.27 2,471
300,005,387.64 | 38,463,690,749 19.37 2,483
277,367,055.20 | 35,561,230,147 18.22 2,336
269,462,281.06 | 34,547,759,055 18.31 2,348
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(2013 31 ) 40,614,375.78 3,734,491,853 12.63 1,161
2014 31 34,240,112.57 3,148,378,351 13.95 1,283
2015 31 48,452,935.06 4,455,247,379 1481 1,362
2016 31 61,980,569.52 5,699,113,367 14.04 1,291
2017 31 80,466,681.28 7,398,911,344 15.59 1,434
2018 31 108,743,816.21 9,998,993,901 18.05 1,660
2019 31 111,599,069.46 | 10,261,534,437 16.56 1,523

10
2020 31 100,896,132.24 9,277,399,359 18.37 1,689
11
2021 31 100,599,384.67 9,250,113,420 21.46 1,973
12
2022 31 110,389,573.88 | 10,150,321,318 21.42 1,970
2021 113,078,628.60 | 10,397,579,900 22.72 2,089
113,974,420.21 | 10,479,947,938 22.74 2,091
116,945,883.48 | 10,753,173,986 22.90 2,106
114,590,110.66 | 10,536,560,675 22.26 2,047
10 117,335,051.12 | 10,788,957,950 22.72 2,089
11 115,552,915.23 | 10,625,090,555 22.33 2,053
12 117,138,703.25 | 10,770,903,764 22.66 2,084
2022 110,389,573.88 | 10,150,321,318 21.42 1,970
108,847,286.91 | 10,008,508,031 21.09 1,939
108,484,264.50 9,975,128,121 21.19 1,948
98,279,189.18 9,036,771,445 19.88 1,828
98,290,096.48 9,037,774,371 19.96 1,835
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2017 a1 698,776,280.91 100.18

2018 a1 3,782,919,157.89 113.49

2015 a1 4,071,752,805.59 102.05

10 1,950,230,774.29 111.61
2020 31 950,230,

1 2,177,118,682.41 132.21
2021 31 177,118,

12 4,808,224,321.00 132.49
2022 31 808,224,

2021 5,133,442,912.09 139.92

5,307,187,194.29 140.10

5,471,474,121.22 141.10

5,301,265,417.65 137.22

10 5,171,953,924.17 140.07

11 5,064,454,781.25 137.95

12 5,255,527,622.13 140.05

2022 4,808,224,321.00 132.49

4,722,295,230.76 130.49

4,706,924,415.10 131.10

4,345,781,817.00 123.03

4,277,359,519.33 123.50
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6.49 9.54

7.95 10.45

3.84 6.16

6.57 5.20

9.85 11.04 0.18

15.44 15.78 13.29

7.64 8.25 10.08
10 12.34 10.93 9.37
11 19.46 16.82 18.46
12 0.57 0.19 0.21

100x%
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1,953,442 7,279,203 17,362,314
(1,953,442) (7.279,203) (17,362,314)
296,337 1,743,547 3,214,938
(296,337) (1,743,547) (3,214,938)
9,286,723 12,893,517 13,755,520
(9,284,929) (12,893,517) (13,753,726)
1,398,495 2,159,067 2,454,366
(1,398,495) (2,159,067) (2,454,366)
14,409,470 5,885,788 22,279,202
14,406,769 5,885,787 22,274,708
1,921,257 1,103,183 3,272,440
1,921,257 1,103,183 3,272,440
9,545,857 6,218,319 25,606,740
9,544,808 6,216,655 25,602,861
2,106,804 964,696 4,414,548
2,106,804 964,696 4,414,548
2,907,061 7,246,085 21,267,716
2,907,061 7,242,206 21,267,716
1,852,137 1,105,740 5,160,945
1,852,137 1,105,740 5,160,945
10,706,132 3,730,721 6,975,411
10,705,102 3,730,721 6,974,381
15,450,896 17,822,349 18,896,263
2,694,046 13,858,311 10,103,451
3,504,291 2,641,139 6,024,097
2,436,190 2,154,582 5,442,553
41,066,602 14,709,545 33,332,468
1,365,477 8,339,858 0
1,963,320 3,913,804 16,945,779
920,451 1,686,900 9,337,002
1,950,930 1,235,892 6,739,135
1,781,536 997,665 6,226,424
18,528,514 11,961,604 39,899,378
0 0 0

169,100 4,786,134 12,328,745
17,109 2,080,165 7,273,946

10 598,127 1,844,872 5,492,390
395,465 1,807,351 4,814,538
600,126 23,025,711 17,473,793

© © ©
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1,630,038 2,105,475 11,853,308

898,377 291,030 7,881,293

11 1,101,178 1,904,906 4,688,662
721,710 1,526,850 4,009,398

4,430,720 5,437,260 16,467,253

0 0 0

6,909,046 2,659,520 16,102,834

1,575,108 1,158,706 8,297,695

12 1,401,357 935,368 5,154,651
868,111 842,509 4,035,000

26,783,756 6,959,731 36,291,278

0 0 0

2016
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100 100 100 100 0.01 100
10 0.01 10 0.01 0.01
10 10 100
12
3.00 3.00 3.00
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L 2633

8.5

0.70
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3.30 3.00

10

https://www.sc.mufg. jp/products/trust/index.html

2633

0.01
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0.01

10
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31

(a

30 3,000

30

30

30

146
30

reviseur d"entreprises

¢
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180

90
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(c

(d
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131

2022 31
128.21 91.95

23 103

23
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2022 31

2022 31
362,774,890 46,511,369

74,714,390 9,579,132

2(a) 437,489,280 56,090,501
2(a) 237 30
2(a) 603,167 77,332
2(a) 2,837 364
438,095,521 56,168,227

2(a) 1,402,338 179,794
2(a) 1,630 209
2(a) 732,542 93,919
(a),4,§’6’7,8 1,187,182 152,209
3,323,692 426,131

434,771,829 55,742,096

50
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2022 31
2022 31 2021 31 2020 31
( ) ¢ ) ( ) « D ( ) « D
434,771,829 55,742,096 328,821,617 42,158,220 286,402,315 36,719,641
( ) ) ( ) () ( ) ()
19.57 2,509 19.46 2,495 16.29 2,089
( ) () ( ) () ( ) ()
( ) 21.42 1,970 21.46 1,973 18.37 1,689
) () ()
( ) 132.49 132.21 111.61
45 50
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2022 31

328,821,617 42,158,220
2(c) 7,217 925
3,344,025 428,737

3,344,025 428,737

220,974 28,331

12,964 1,662

14,316 1,835

79,109 10,143

111,467 14,291

39,457 5,059

22,457 2,879

2(c) 8,814 1,130
7,204,825 923,731

(7.204,825) (923,731)

2(a),2(b) 21,889,567 2,806,461
2(a),2(b) (1,817,898) (233,073)
2(d),2(e) (299,347) (38,379)
19,772,322 2,535,009

71/276




45

50

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(25,100,912)

2(d),2(e) 41

(3,218,188)

5

(25,100,871)

(3,218,183)

(12,533,374)

(1,606,904)

2(h) 197,113,020 25,271,860
2(h) (78,629,434) (10,081,080)
118,483,586 15,190,781
434,771,829 55,742,096

721276
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2022 31
11,853,308 6,909,046 2,659,520 16,102,834
4,688,662 1,401,357 935,368 5,154,651
16,467,253 26,783,756 6,959,731 36,291,278

45

50

731276
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2022 31

BlackRock Globa Funds - Global

3,390,423 Allocation Fund X Class non-distributing 317,140,158 72.94
share
BlackRock Global Funds - Global

4,311,879 Allocation Fund X Class non-distributing 78,459,959 18.05

share AUD hedged
BlackRock Global Funds - Global

3,329,352 Allocation Fund X Class non-distributing 41,889,163 9.64
share JPY hedged

437,489,280 100.63

437,489,280 100.63

437,489,280 100.63

(2,717,451) (0.63)

434,771,829 100.00
( ) ( )

www . blackrock.com

2453

2022 31

)

100.63
100.63
(0.63)

100.00

45 50

741276
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31

fonds commun de

2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12

751276
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2022 31

16,644 0.00

25

DY
00

90 15

@~
o un

@
wu

15
10
15

| [wn
oun|  |ou)

24 ()

(www.blackrock.com)

771276
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2022 31
2022 31
2022 28
2022 31
0.706650 0.699450
0.783607 0.782932
1.074402 1.075095
0.150336 0.150005

791276
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1.118800 1.116550
1.342799 1.341400
0.128254 0.128310
0.000070 0.000070
0.008665 0.008682
0.048249 0.047879
0.739044 0.737572
0.035953 0.035953

(f

11 13 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined
(9
2022 31
(h
(i
2022 31 120,812
(a

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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(b
(c
(a
0.33 0.75
(b
0.1667 1.00
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2020 30

0.025

1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2022 31

2022 31

61,000

2019 17
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2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01 2022 31

12
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(1)
(i)
12
2022 31
40,000,000 2022 31
0.15
0.90
13
14
2022 31

127,623

1,776

15
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16
2022 31

2022 14
2022 31

17
2022 25
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2022 31
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2022

Bheifad

Workd Ingccere
i e

usd

Assels
Setuwitios porliohs ol oot A0INSD000 M2 TTA RN Bl AN NG XS5E08 227 7RSS 056 27806 472
Unroalsed approciationidepcaciation 61,572 095 74,704,050 156187 [23,155407 - 1.8 75
Sacartis portfohie @l Ml vilie 2@ 300G NT88 AT ABDIE0 D1676,406  Z71,.008.000 2271785056 26,963,347
Cash ol bunk 2[ap 22,473 588 237 26,650 G B35.A08 12571 454 —
sy Boe Rkt s 74518 — — 74,618 - —
Evinresd and dwvidonds endanalio a1 2,804 Bl — 55573 2. THE 185 e e AT 309
Aot kb Torinvwesbhants sold 2 758,311,086 BE3,96T - 1,898,519 755, B89 000 —
PCehcabin Ins Fund unils sulisctibad 20y LIS 05T 2837 0,808 930,06 2 200
Ui asd S Flon on

Opan Torwaud foooign exchange ansaclions 2[dp 648 RhG — -- ] - -
Dwapes al imasel vaua &3 406 [ il
Tolsl asseds 3,883 H3 502 438,095,421 90,855, 484 2HT B0 ERA 3040245 347 26,212,958
Liglnhties
Cash owid Lo bane 2[ap LA ] 1,402,338 — — = E R
Dlese b ckand 15 alatis] mMor
Fayabes by gnfandod pan 2y RoeR — e - -
Fapble i rvostmonts puschased 20y TG 1,630 — 6,880,150 PERISE0H 2205
Payabie b Fund unds redoomaed 2ap BT 778 TAD 547 - 195,656 = -
Deadomds papablo ) G, TBE — _ - 109, TBS -
Unroalsed doprocation on

Opon karwand forosgn exchangae bansactons Hdp 178 —_ — 1124 - —
Swaps al masat valoo () 2625 — — 20625 - -
Aconsd eaporos. ani olfwer Rabdfes 2iai4, 56,18 3,500 305 1,187,182 181,82 B0 1M 100 516 117347
Total Nabdilios TE1.628.620 3,323,692 181,821 8,026,715 TESGCE, 793 427618

_ Tolel ned ssswls N G I6AEED 434 TTLHZY M6FNET  ITH B4R 2270 580,584 1518517

M yptoation based o anrberd ool method. Pome st b ofe 2a)

Approved an bahaell of the Board of Directers of the Management Company

Dirpctor n'n'n;h
Choil Readchithe Leon Schwab
Duate 25 May 2022 Dt 25 May 2022

st NSRS o GRS A% 10 06 08 BN WO [k OF I TR  EAHTHETES.

Annual ropad and audiled lnancial slalemonts 11
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2022

Comenoy £ 3 Jarary 2021 H Jammary 220
Global Alocation Pertfalic
Tolal nel assels U 434,771,829 32681817 268,402,318
Ml a5l valud ol
A Class non-d sinteding Lt LD 19.57 1946 1620
A Clags non-diginboing und A0 AD .42 21 46 1837
A Class mon-dsinbitfmg und JFY S 132 45 L oeled| 11081

Glabal Equity Inceme Penfalis
Tedal net assols UED 01,673,623 90,10 100,733,419
Bl el vl g bl

A Class disinbd UED 1702 15,44 1485
F Ciags digd LUED 20.18 17 48 1T
Incoma Strotegies Fortholia
Todal net sesots ugn 279,553,409 284554877 319,000,892
Ml ansal valua per
A Class distributing il LD 54T 556 555
A Class distibuting unil SGD hedgad S60D 1014 1035 [k ]
AD Class: digintuling urd (o) 2.4 243 348
B Class di sinbiafing und =D S47 S 5h 555
& Clags dishribud ing unit 155 x] aTs 10 0# {[+Tsk]
J Class disl rbuting Ll WD 538 S5 ]
Super Money Market Fund "
Tolal net assels uzo 2270, 580,504 2,476 BET 40T 2385874401
Ml appsl valiue par
Commen disiribuling ung usD 1 () 1 ) § 00
Current distritading und UED 100 104 100
Instiutional | diddébiding wni UED 1 1) 1.1} 100

Warld Inceme Portfalia
Todal net assote usn 2ETESIIT 29,518,487 26471301
Mol el valug pol

A Class distnbuting und USD 11% 156 T
A Chags diginbiding unil A0 AU 4.7 10AT Vi 4
A Class i ginbuting unll ELUR ELR il 9ER 340

O Sogeaet kol WMoY iyl gty P b0 PR v LIS 0 ] it 1 iy 2010 B COMESTIe] i Y b Probiies Dol it hiel & et Villsh ol It PR Placinsh il i
L

Tha Nodas o0 pages &5 1o 50 Form &h integral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

[12] BlackRock Glotal Invesiment Series
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

for the year ended 31 January 2022

Hot ossols of the beginning of e year
It toivvis

Bari rtoras

BlackR ook Glotal
Ieresiment

Torias Combined

Glotml &l pation
Partielio

Globml Equity
Imcoanh Portiolia

@0, 790,319

Bord and kean inbanes -2 =
DA dords (bl of wil FFelding 1255 | E22TTO
Monsgemant fos rebate q e i
Tedal Insome 16,934,524 — 1,832,700
Expenses

Bari infarar e T

Mandgemenl 1ase 4 13,700 750

Distsibution [oas q4 T B34 A%

Hominisiradion foos B THY BB

Aot Teas B3OS

Liogal fees 154 B

Frinting and other reporing fees 410851

T 11 999730

Coordination faes 5 TE4 AT

Capoaflary Tisas
Trarsd s aiant Pt
Loan comm Ement foas

§ LFrd b
16T BE
1 3R Ia:

Miscolianodis foas Hal L0 508 B A Es
Todal expers os befors redmb uns emsnt 24 685 40k T.204 435 TH4 b8
Roimburgament of apanses q 11000 429 — =

Tolal expensos after reimbursement

15,671,907

7,204 825

Nt inwosbrent incoms{delicit)

4.862.819

(T.204.82%5)

Faaksed qain on nvestmants
Rodlisod (los) of esimants
Ml realised gaindoes) on
Fuluifies coilracls

Fos

5 oarirads

Nt roalised gainiloss) for the year

g currendes and forward forsign aechangs bransachions

42,730,768

(8651 282]

{10
G492, 180

(364]

34,7770

21 653 567

{1807 )

§259, 347T)

19,772,333

43083

11.064.055

"-h:u';n n ure galited appracialion on iresaddm anld
roaised [deprecdation) on measim erds
Sapacialion ) o
ervclas ared forwmnd foraign auchangs rarsachions

{hanga in
Ml o
Foragn
il J Lo

b In uniraaised spprecdationy

a

Het chongs in unrealised sppresiatisnideprecistion] for Iha year
Ine Teas eDNCr0084) Im rved a3s0Ls 0% o resull of opoerations

[0, B G200
(4867 752)

{ELSES)

(1T 6T

BRaea0

4314309

(08§00 812}

44

E5100.871)

(12.933.374)

1 1

g3.187)
12115452

Movoemands in unit capital
Ml raceipls a5 & resul of igasa of unils

Bl Pyl il S A2 G Skl

Inc hesae o Docroans) im ol atscts o8 o resull of movements in unit caphal

Dévidonds dealarad
Het aegets o the ond of the year

E56 of units

A 185 {51 G5

¥T280,T44
(99,552 108)
1t (14 Gad 02

302,364,852

02}

18T 3000
[T8,679 434

116,443,556

434,771,829

138622081

(23.258261)

0434080}
O T Ay
1673833

T Ndas o pagess &5 1o 50 Form &h integral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

Annual report and audited financial stalements  [13]

90/276



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2022 continued

Incoere Strabegies Super boney ‘et d | g omm
Horhet Fund Partiolia
ush L)
Nt asadds o the beginming of Bhe yoear TE1H48TT TATHAET 40T YA B
Income
Blari; intoras - W TS -
Bond @0 boan Inbaes 13411087 2003 557 -
Cevidends {mat of wilbhedding tach 16l 262 = s T
Management 1as rebate 14 854 - 52
Tolal ks 13.596.503 2.419.132 TRETI
Expaonses
Bl inforosl Heh 3447
Managornent faes 4 1687702
Diststbudion [ees ] 1AVEASID
Somintsiration feas £ FETS
Ao Tipiss v 2T 081
Logal fess A2
Prinking and olher regoring e B5.287
Taces 10 11 55T
Coordination faas 5 Thak
Daposfary [ees & ITRETE
Tramsfor agend foos T
Loan comm iment faas 12 163 - =
Slrzcalan s fides alsl, 13,70 12,725 35,540
Todal expors os belore reimb urs ermsant 3030448 12,246 004 S1TIE
Rambursamant of sxpenses 4 = 1100 421 —
Total expons os after reimbursament 3035 484 1,275,483 7305
et inwostment Incomes{doficit) B,64T. 415 1,143 245 188,416
Faabsad gain on Investsants Hal) b} 72850 505 190 003
Foabsed {loss) on imssiments Ha). b} [a 07 311) (5d 075}
Ml raalised gaind)oRs) on
Futunss conlracls 3y {8} .
Forgign currencies ard foreard foreign auchangs rangactong i el Bl 45E oA AL T i)
Dpiors Surirads 2{d} (64} = =
Nt roalised gainiloss) for the yesr 36937490 23677 17486
Changa b undaakesd apprecialion on e ans 6. 1TE2%1) - 44 578
Change in unrealised (depradation) on Invwasim ents (2,308 RS} a P21 3 4eg)
Mal changs in unresssd apprecabiony deprecialion) on
Falgn cuftencos ard forward fanEgn achangs rarsaciong Hd), 2Hah DAL N] 2E
Swap transadions 2(d} LIEETE) — —
Het change in unrealised sppretiationiidepresialion) for the year (B S84 T4 — {1875 81E)
Incrisin e Decroass) in ned assats o8 a reaadl of operations 50347 1,186,336 {1,469, 216)
Mevements in unit capital
Ml recaipls as @ resu® of lisue of unils 2k} ITIEEEM 2A55.170. 088 [F:chR R
Ml parym ants 25 @ rasull of repurchass of unig Falal) [31,940.084) {3,143, 456 ges) §3 4561 455}
Increase{Deoreass) in el assats o5 a resull of movements in unit capital 5,243 540 (06,286, 813) {1,588, 339}
Crddends deciared 18 {12 3 635) {1 1BE 328} (705 245}
Nt asaele of the ond of (he year ITR.853.450 22T, 590,504 25 TERIIT

T et o0 pagess &5 1o 50 Form h infegral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

[14]  BlackRock Glotal Invesiment Series
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Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding
for the year ended 31 January 2022

Uity cutstanding Uity oyt nding
Units mt the end

Fsaurd of the year

Global Aocation Perfalia

Giabal Equity

AClass disink 189, 0@ 573389
Class @ginb 3,166,554

Insz ety Shralegies Portlolis
A Class distnbuting ued

Weorld Inceme Portlalia
A == digrbuling

T et o0 pagess &5 1o 50 Form h infegral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

Annual repor and audited financial stalements [18]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRock Global Investiment Senes (the "Fund’) is a fonds
commun de placement formed under Lthe ks of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembowg, The Fund s set up under Part Il of the
law of 17 December 2010 relating to undeiakings for colbective
investmenl as amended (the “Z2010 L aw”). The Fund qualiies as
an allernative imvestment fund (AR in acoordance with
Directve 2011/61/EL of the European Parllament and of the
Coundl of & June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund
Managers (AIFMDT and the Luxemboug law of 12 July

2013 on alternabive imvestment fund managers as amended (the
2043 Law™)

The Management Company appointed BlackRock Assat
Management Iredand Limdled (the “AIFM7 a3 the allennative
investrmeant fund manager The AIFM will provide and procure
the: prowision of investment managemeam services, mduding
portbalio and risk management fundions, tor the Fund. The
AIFM is entitled to delegate s fundions. powers, discrelions.
duties and obligations, suljed o AIFMD requirements

As al 31 January 2022, 1the Fund offered units in five Portiolios,
Global Alocation Portiolio, Global Equity Income Por tolio,
Income Sirateqies Podifolio, Super Money Markel Fund and
World Ineome: Poitfolio (sach a Podtlalie” and oollectively the
Porlfolios”). Each Portickio has different invesiment objeclives
and inviests i different types of imwestments.

Each Porlfolio ts a separale pool of assels and s represented
by separade units of each Portfolio which are divided into unit
classes a5 detalled on page 54

The dasses of units have equivalent rights in the Portfiolios. bt
carry different fealures and charging strudures, which are more
fully descaibed in the Fund's Prospecius.

Significant events during the year
= Anew Prospectus was issued on 10 March 2001

= EMectiva 1 Apnl 2021, Svetlana Bulvina and Leon Josephine
Schab were appotiled as Diredors of the Board of the
Managemen! Compay

= Effective 23 Seplember 2021, Graham Bamping resigned as
Charman of the Board of ihe Managemenl Company

= Elective 23 Seplember 2021, Jonathan Grillin was appotnted
as Chatrman of the Board of the Managemen! Company

¥

Effective 23 Seplember 2021, Adnan Lawrence resigned as
Director of the Board of the Management Company

Effective 23 September 2021, Richard Gardner was appointed
as Derector of the Board of the Management Company,

= A new Prospectus was issued on 1 January 2022

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

The inancial statements have been prepared in acoordanoe
with generally sccepled accounting panciples in Lussmbourg
and with the legal and regulatorny requirements relating to the
preparation of the finandal stalements as prescribed by the
Luxembourg authorities for Ludembourg investiment companies
and include the lollowing significant accounting policies:

{a) Valualion of Invesiments and Othey Assels
The Fund’s investments and ofher sssels are valued as follows
Hon-Money Market Portfolios

= T boans are nol lIsled on any secunties exchange. In
dedermining the Met Assel Value {HAVY). the Porticlio utiises
e valuations of lerm loans furnished by a pricing service
approved by the AIFM. The pricing service typically values.
termm loans al the bid price when quolalions ane readily
avallable. Term loans for which quotations are nod readily
avallable are valued al fair markel value on a consistent basis
as determined by the pricng senice using pricing madnces o
detegmine valiations. The procedures of the picing services
and s evalualions are reviewed by the livvestment Adviser of
e relevant Portfolio (the Tnvestnment Adviser™p under the
general supervision of the AIFM. The AFM has determined in
g Faith thal the use of & icng service s a fair method of
dedermaning the valuation of lerm loans,

Portiolio secunities comsrsting of equiles, bonds and other
debt instruments {othes than short-denm obligations but
inchading listed kswes) may be valued on the basis of prices
furnished by one or more pricing services which detemmine
prices bor nomal, insiilutional -size frading undis of such
securities using marked information. ransactions for
comparatile securities and varous relatinships betwesn
securiies thal are generally recognised by msiutionsl
lraders,

Porlolic secaumities that afe listed on stock exchanges o
traded on other regulaed markets are valued 8 the last
fmown price on such exchanges of markeds as of the dose ol
e biidiness day Ininediately preceding the valuslion date
with the exception of Global Equity Inoome Forliolio for which
securitbes are valued al the valuation date the last known price
as of 400 pm. Luxembourg time ("4PM CET" oo, in each
case, the "Relevant Time") If there ae no such zales of a
particular securty, the value of such securnly will be the last
avallable bid price of the Redevant Time of, in ceriain
arcumstances, such portfolio secunties are valued al the kast
sabe price on the exchange thal is the primany market for such
sacurilies, or tha last quoled bid price for those secumtes for
which the Overthe-Counter COTCT) maked such a3 NASDACL
Is the primary market for Bsled securilies.

= Investments n open-ended collectve investiment schemes are

valued on the basis of the lag avalable nol assel value of the
units of such collecive ivestment schemes;

Annual repor and audited financial statoments  [45]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

= Foeed inoome searities (hal ae nol listed on slock exchanges
of traded on other regulated makels are valued at the last
available bid price or vield equivalents obiained Trom one o
mena dealers or pricing services, Sacuriies traded in the OTC
ke ane valued at the las) avallabde bid price. In cases
where securilles are traded on more than one exchange. the
gocurities ane valued on Lhe exchange deskgnated by of under
the direction of the AIFM as the primary magkel. Portfolio
securities thal are raded both in the OTC market and on a
slnck exchange are valued according to the broades! and
mesl representalive marked,

When marked quotations are nol readily avallable or the AIFM
dedegrines thal the independent markel quotaion does nol
refled fair magkel value. the AIFM wll, in seoordance with
applicable laws, determine a far markel value for that assel of
lizbility. ¥When determining the pnce for such an assel or
liability. the AFM may use one or more of a vanely of fair
valuation methodologies {depending on fadors including the
assel ype). The AIFM might, for example, price the assel
hased on the onginal cost of the investment o it maght use
preprietary or third-pagly models. mcluding models thal rely
upan dwect portfolic management pricing inpuls and which
refled the significance altnbwded 1o the vanous Factors being
conslderad by the AIFM when il values the assel andior
liability, a5 well a5 certain assumpions. The AlFM might also
uze prices of actual, executed, Mstorcal ransactions in the
assel andior labillly (oo related or comparable assels andior
liabilities) &5 & basks for valualion or even use, where
approprale, an appralsal by a third party esporienced in the
valuation of similar assets andiorn kabadilies.

As al 31 January 2022, the adjusted far value applied 1o cerlain
secyrilies s discdosed in the table below

ol Hedl

Poetinlin Fair walue faneis

iz o Slraticees Podlaho (k2N 15644 o

Plesase refer tothe Portfolio of Invesiments section for further
detalls of the secunlies.

Super Money Market Fund

= The AIFM has established procedwes designed 1o stabilise, o

the extent reasonably possible and in acoordance with the
Money Market Funds Regulation (the MMFR", the Super
Money Markel Fund's price per unil as commputed for the
purpose of subscriptions and redemplions a3l USD 1 {he
“comvstanl NAYT) . NAY is rounded 1o the nearest pes centadge
podint, or ils equivalant in currency lerms;

* The Portiolio's underlying securities and money markel
instruments are valued based upon their amortised oost. This
Inwolves valuing an mstiument al ils cosl and thereafer
assuming a conslant armorlisalion lo malurnity of any discount
of premium, regardiess of the inpad of Nuciuating interes)
rales o e rrarked value of the instruments. Whiks this
method provides certamly in valualion, il may resull in periods
during which value, as determined by amoitised oosl, s
higher o lower than the price the Super Money Market Fund
wiould receive I i sold the instrurment,

[46]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Series

* The Portfolio is dassified as a short term Public Debd CNAY
MMF and complies with the requirements under MMFR. As a
resull of this, the AIFM has introduced additional prudent and
ngorous iquidity managament proceduras lo ensure
compliance with any liquidity thresholds applicable 1o the
Poortholic:;

To assess whether the assets of the Portfolio aré sulliciently
liquid b meed reasonatdy loresecabde redemplions and nol
fowce assels from being kquidated a1 disoounted prices, the
valatility of the Portiolio’s assets is frequently monitored. The
AIFM may also apply one or more of Lhe following messures:

= imposing bquidty fees on redemptions thal adequately
reflect the cost o the Portiolio of achieving quedity and
ensure thal the wnitholders who remain in the relevant
Porttolio are not unfairly disadvaniaged when olher unit
holders redesm thelr units duing e period,

i, within a perod of 90 days, the lotal duration of
suspensions excesds 15 days, the Super Money Market
Fund shall aulomatically cease ko be a short-lesm Public
Dbt CNAY MMF and the AIFM shall nform unitholders of
ihis facl;

alter the Board of Diredctors of (he Management Cormpany
of the Portfolio has determined its course of adion with
regard to above apoinls, it shall premply provide details of
ils decigion 1o the competent authority of the Portiolio:

lirersing redamplion gates that limBl the smadnt of waits 1o
ez resdessmed on any one working day o @ mesdmun of
100 of the units of the Postlolio lor aiy pefiod up 1o

15 working days;

= Inpersing a suspension of redemplions lor amy penod o up
1o 15 working days, of

= takireg no imimediate adion other than fulflling the obligaton
laid dovan in Articke: 24 (2} of the MMFR.

The Por tlolio caloulates & shadow NAY whereby umde bying
securitbes and money market ingliuments are valued based
Upsn @ rreed K-Lo-manked pce. In compliance with MMFR
respuiremnents, the diffesence between the constant NAY pes
unit and the NAY per unit calculated wsing mank-to-marked is
rmondlored and published daily on the websile of the

MMF: www blackrock com

All Portfollos
= Cash is valued &l its nomenal arnount

= Repurchase agreements and revesse repurchase agreements
are: valued at cost plus sociued interest. Recevable and
payable balances ielaled 16 fepurchase aqreemens and
rewerse repurchase agrecments are induded in the Staterment
of Mat Assels respedively unded the captions "Recetvable bor
investmemts sold” and Payable for invesiments purchased”.
The accrued interest from reverse repurchase agresments s
inchaded in the Salement of Nel Asseds under the caption
“Interest and dividends recefvable™

= Liquid asgels such as money mc kel nstrunwents are valued
ot an Aot lised oos basis;
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

= Assels which indude, in particula, imerest and dividends
recevable, receivable for investments sobd and recetvable for
Furd units subsoribed are valued al nominal value,

= Lizbilitkes which indude, m particular, payable for mvestiments
purchased . payable lor Fuind unils redesmed, merest and
dividends payabde ane valued al nominal valus.

(b} Realsed gains and losses on Investments

Realised gains and losses on sales of mvestmenis have besn
determined on the basis of the average cost method

() Incomed Expense from Investments

The Fund takes aredil o inocome from its ivestments on the
Talkowing basis:

= interest income s acciued daily and ncludes the amonisation
on a siraighi-Ene bags of premiums and accrelion of
discotints.

= bank interes is recognised on an accuals basis and mdudes
interest incomes iom Feverss repurchass aorsEmenls,

¥

dividend oo 12 accued on the ecdividend date and is
shown net of willkholding Lax:

= lmcorme [rom reverse repuichase iansactons is incduded In
the Statement of Operations under the caplion Bank
([ PR o

* an mlerest rale differential CIRDT) 5 the diference in inlarest
rates belween wo similar interest beaning securities which
arises from the currency hedging process eq. i the 1 manth
interest rate on US0 s 0.25% and an AUD Ui 1%, then the
implied IRD is 0 T5%. Traders in the foretgn exchange marked
use IRD's when pricing fonward exchange rates. IRDs can be
postive, nil or negative. Inclusion of IRDYs n dvidends meay
constitute & payment from capital in some junsdictions. IRD s
recorded as miscellaneous fees in the Statement of
Operations and Changes in Nel Assels,

{d) Financal Dernvative stmuments

Duming thes veawr thee Fund has entered into s number of lorward
foresgn exchange ransacions and fulures conlracts, Open
futures contracts are valued at the fair rmarked vaue 1o close the
comracts on the accounting date S pluses/delicils arsing from
these and closed unsellled contracts are taken to unrealised
appredalion/{depradation) and are indudead under assals or
liabilibes (as appropiate) in the Statement of Nel Assels. The
nel change in unrealised appredalion of depreciation and the
nel realised gains of losses on selllement or closing
ransaclons of forward loreign exchange transactions and
futures contracts are presented in the Statement of Operalions
and Changes in Mel Assols,

Duging the year, the Fund has entered into swap ransacions 1o
exchange the relurn generaled by one mstrumenl for the return
generaled by amother imvestment. The Fund can write cred
defaull swaps ((CDSEY and purchese COS. When the Fund
wriles andlor purchases a COS, asenes of premiums is pald o
of paid by the Fund, in return for a payment conlingent on a
cresfil evient {predefined in the agreement). The premiums ane
Inchuded in the oost of COS. Where possible, swaps are mearked
Iy ket based upon daily prices obtained from thied party

pricing agents and vertlied againsd the actual rmarkel meker.
Where such quotations are nol available swaps are priced
braged upon daly quolations from the marked maker In both
cases changas in quotalions are recorded &5 nel change n
unrealised appredation or deprecation In the Stalement of
Operalions and Changes in Ned Azsels. Mol realised gains or
losses on matuity of lerminaton of the swaps and the Interest
earnedd in relalion 1o the swaps are presented in the Stalement
of Operations and Changes in Ned Asseds

Each Portlolio may soll call options and purchase pul oplions on
stock mdices o seck o hedge portfolio secunlies against the
impadt of anticipated general poice declings in equily mankets of
specilic industry sedors thereol, Options on indices are similar
o options on securilies excepl thal on exerdss of assignment,
the: parties 1o he comrad pay of recele an amount of cash
equal 1o the difference: betwesn the dosing value of the index
and the exercise price of the oplion limes a specilied multiple
The effectiveness of a hedge employing stock index options will
depend primarily on the degree of correlalion belwean
rmovements in the value of the index underlying the option and
in the portion of the portfolio beng hedged. Among other
fadors, the degres of cormelalion with respaed o conver tilble
securiles will ba affected by the degrea lo which the marked
value of porifolio securilies s altfbutable to their conversion
wvalue The nel changs in unrealised apprecation or deprecialion
and the net realised gains of sses on expialion o closing
tramsad ions of opions are presented in the Stalement of
Operalions and Changes in Ned Assols

{e) Feeign Exchange

The cxvel ol investmonls in currencles olher than the currency of
dencrmination of the respedive Portfolio has been transiated at
thes rates of exchange ruling at the time of purchase, Market
value of invesimants and other assels n currendies other than
lhe canrency of denomination of the respective Portiolio have
been translated & the exchange rate prevalling # the Portfolios
valualion point in Luxemnbourg &% at 31 January 2022 The ned
change in unreslised apprecation or depreciation and the nel
realised gains of losses on disposal or setilement of other
assels of labililles in currendes other than the anrency of
denomination of the respedive Portfolio are presented in the
Statement of Operalions and Changes in Nel Assels

e and expenses in cumencies other than the currendsy of
denomination of the respadive Portfolio have been ranslaled al
the rales of exchange prevailing on transaction date

Differant exchange rales are resulling from the pricing mal rix
and diffesrent valuation points betwesn the different Portfolios. In
lhe below table, the 4PM CE T exchange rales on 31 January
2022 ane presented for Global Allocalion Portfelio. Global Equaty
Incoma Porticlio and World Income Portlolio, the 5PM CET
exchange rales on 28 Janwary 2022 are presented for Inocime
Strategies Porticlio and Super Monay Market Fund

The fellowing exchange rates were used to ranslale the
investments and olher assets and other labdities for all
Petfolios denominated n camencles olher than the base
currency of the respedive Portfolio as at 31 January 2022

Strategies Past ol and
¢ Meney biarkel Fund

uso

Annual repor and audited financial stalements [47]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
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{fy Combined Financial Stalemenls

The Combined Financal Statements of the Fund ae expressed
in US0 and nclude the tota of the Iinandal stalements of the
different Por tfolios

{) Deferred Crganisational Expenses

Deferred organiaalional expenses af e capitalised and are
amelised on @ straighl-line basis over a five year peiod, As al
3 January 2022, all Portfclos had hully armorised ther deferred
organisalional expenses

{h Income Equalisation

Each Portfolio follows the accounting pradice of equalisation lo
prexent the undistributed income per unil from fucluating solely
bey reason of subscriplions and redemplions of Hs unils. This s
acoomplished by mantaining an equalisation account for the
relevant Portfolio. The egualisation aocount is oredited with that
portion of the proceeds of subsaribed units representing the ned
undistributed incomme per unit of those units, and s debited with
thiad portion of any redemplion pay ment representing nel
undistribsuted imcomse per unil of the redecmed units. A portion
of the dividends dedared by a Portioho may consist of amounts
previously credited io the equalisation accounl. The yield
reported lo mvesions will ncude amounts paid from net income
as well as any amount padd from the equalisation acooant

The Income E qualisation is nduded in the Movements in unil
capital in the Statement of Operations and Changes in MNet
Assels

{1 Unfunded loans represent the remaining otdigation of the
Portfolic o the bomower

As al 31 January 2022, the Income Siralegies Porlfolio had an
unfunded loan of USD 120 812 disclosed under Payabde for
urfundied loan” in the Statement of Nel Assels

3. Management Company and Investment Advizers
{a) Managemand Compaiy

BlackRodk Fund Managemen! Company S A is the
Masagement Company of the Fund. Pursuant o the
Managemant Regulations, the Managemenl Company has
agreed o manage the Fund's Portfolos for the exdusive
aomunt of the redevant Unitholders. The Depositary and sudh
olher agents as appropoate, incuding Dstiibutors of the Fund’s

[48]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories

Unitz in and oulside Japan are appointed by the Management
Ceompany The Managemenl Company has delegated the
appoiniment of Distributors Lo the Principal Distribulor

BlackRock Fund Managamenl Company S A Is awholly owned
siibsidiary within the BlackRock Group and s regulated by the
Commigsion de Surveiliance du Secleur Financier ("CSSF")

(b} AP

The Managemenl Company has appoinled BlackRock Assel
Management edand Lirsted as the altemative vestment fund
manager o provide and procure the provision of imvestment
management services, induding portfoo and risk mansagement
furcticns, for the Fund within the meaning of the AIFMD. The
AFM 15 eniled 1o dedogale ds fundions, powers, discrelions,
duties and obligations, subjed to AIFMD requirements

Thee AIFM i3 a wholly owned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and Is authewised by the Central Bank of Ireland

Ther ABFM s pald oul of the management lee due o the
Managemeant Company. as cuthined in Note 4

{c} Investment Advigers
Sulyed e the overall responsibility of the AIFM . each of the

Peatodicss recees investiment sdvisony services iom the
Invasiment Advisers

|k il Adheia i i

bl Allocation Porfoba
G dl Equity Income Postlol
rizome Sirdeges Porfolo
Super Monsy Warkel Fund
World Incoms Porl ok

EtackRock Japsan Co, Lid

BlackRock |rvest menl Managemen LK) Limded
ElackRock Firancal Managemant, Inz
Blachitock Fnanoal Marsgement, Inc

Etackfock Japan Co, Lid

Theer Ivveestment Advigers form part of the BlackRock Group

The Investment Advisers are each paid oul of the managenment
fze e bo Uhe: Mansgement Comgeainy, s outlined in Note 4

4. Management and Distribution Fees
{a) Management fees

Dunng the year. the Fund pald manageman fees tothe
Managensnt Company

Theer leved of management fee varies frorm 0.33% Lo 0. 75% per
annum of the NAV, with the exceplion of Class F units, which do
ned pay @ management fea bul rather afee to the Investiment
Adviger or affiliates unde 5 separate agreasment, The level of
management fee vares according o which Portbolio and umil
class the imvestor buys. These fees acorue daily, are based on
the WA of the rebovant Portioio and are pald monthly. The
Fund's AIFM and Invesiment Adviser fees are bome by the
Managemeant Company and patd through the managemen fee

(b Crisdribation fees

Ther Manageamenl Company has also entered into & Distritution
Agresment wilh BlackRock Investimen! Managemsent

(UK Limsted {the Principal Distntutor”). The Pandpal
Distritastor may condude montraciual arrangenents wilh cenlain
Distribaors for the distnbution of units outside the U S such as
the: Japanese Distibulors (as disclosed on pages 3 o 4)

97/276



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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The lewe] of distiibation Tes vames from O 1667% to 1_00% per
annum, of the NAY, with the exception of Classes AD units, D
units, F units, Instilutional | units, which do nol pay a disinbution
fee The level of disinbution fes vanes acoording to which
Poatolio and unit dass the investor buys. These lees acoue
daily, are based on ihe NAY of ihe redevani Portlolio and are

pald quartlesy

The managesnent and distrbaulion lees per unil dass for each
Portlolio are disclosed in délall in the Fund's Prospecius

Since 30 Apwil 2020, there has boen a lee walver on
rrenagement fees, dsiibution fees in place for the Super
Mosvey Markel Fund's Common, Cundent and nstlutonal | units

5. Coordination Fees

The Management Commpany has entered inlo an agreament with
BlackRock Operations (Luxernbourg) S a cl, (BROL) pursuant
1o which BROL , under the divection of the Board of Direclods ol
the: Management Company. provides certain corporate and
adrmingsirative coordination senices on Behall of the Fund

The coordination fee rate is 0.025% of the average daly NAV of
ihe Fund {excluding Class F units), per anmm

6. Administration Fees

The: Management Company has appointed State Streel Bank
International GmbH, Luxembourg Branch, 49, avenue J-F
Kennedy, L1855 Luxernbourg, a5 the Fund's Administrative
Agent in Luxernbourg to assist the Management Company al its
principal office in Luxermbowg with general sdministrative lasks
pirsusant o the Administraton Agreemant, agains dhanging
usual fess for these services.

7. Audit Fees
Detatled below are the fees pasd to Delotte Audit 5.4 ol for the
year ended 31 January 2022,

H Jummey 2122

EUR
Sul ard s retabod Senais foodipding \AT) G0
lorraudd sanases —

8. Depositary Fees

T hex Management Company has entered inlo the Depositary
Agreement with the Depositary, Stale Streel Bank International
GmbH, Lugemboung Brandh. Thig agreement was amendied
effedive 17 January 2019 in ne with the appointrment of the
AlFM,

The Depositary Agreement provides that all securities and cash
of the Fund, other than cash held in rading acoounts of hald in
any operalting accounis for expensas or dividend disbursement
acoounts (which may be maintained al other banks), ane to be
held by o to the coder ol the Depasitary provided that the
Management Company may place cash in overnight call
accounts or on lerm deposit with olher banks apgeoved by the
Deposilary, who shall continue 1o supervise such funds. The
Depasitary s responsible for the collection of principal and
income en, and the payment for and collechon of proceeds of
socuiies boughl and sold for the Fund. Inline with the
compliance of the AlFM and the Fund's compliance with AIFMD,
the Depositany's role pursuant to AIFME enhances Linghold er
pratecton and ncludes the responsibility 1o safekeap the assels
of the Fund and hold in custody all inanaal mstruments, cash
and other assels of the Fund {the “Safekeeping Fundtion™)

Thex Depositary charges the Fund lees bor these serices in
accordance with s usual rates expressed as a fracdion of a
percentage per annum of the nel assels of the Fund. The
Dieposiizry may appoind one of more cosrespondent banks, and
it is expected thal the Depositary relains a correspondent bank
in the United States, whose lees shall be borne by the Fund. As
part of its Salekeeping fundion, the Deposfary 1s latde o the
Fumd for the loss of linandal instruments which are held o

custody

9. Transactions with Related Parties

The ultimete holding company of the Management Comipany,
the Principad Distributor, the AIFM, the vestment Manages and
the: Investment Advizers is BlackRock, Inc., a company
incorporated in Dedaware, USA,

Dumingg the year there have been no significant ransactions
which were outside the ordinary course of business or which
ware nol on normal aormemencial e s,

10. Taxes

Under present Luxembourg law and practice, the Fund s not
Il b0 amy Lusesnboung of dieary incom: of capllal galng ax,
no ane dividends pald by the Fund subject to any Luxenmbourg
withhwolding L. However the Fund is subjsct 1o 3 subscoriplion
tas { Taoce o abonnement) of 0.06% per annum kevied on the
MNAY of sach Portholio sl the lasl day of each cdendae quarter,
in acoordanoe with the 200 0 Law, excepl in resped of Super
Meney Marked Fund as well a3 in respecd of the Pertfolios o
unit classes reserved for instilutional imeestons within the
rmeaning of Artiche 174 of the 2010 Law, on which a reduced tae
of 0.01% per annum s kevied. For the year ended 31 January
2022 Global Alocation Portfolio and World Incomie Portioso
hiawe not pabd Lusembourg taxdes, a5 no subsaiption iax is paid
on the assels held by the Portfolios in other under Lakings o
colledive imnvesiment already subjed o thal tax in Luxemboug.

Under applicable loresgn tax laws, withholding Laxes may be
imposed on inlerest, dividends and capital gains al vanous
rales,

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund

The ned inecme (e, acorued interest ineome nel of accued
exprenses) is dedared a3 a dividend on each valuation date on
all units outstanding on thal day 1o the Unithelders of recosd
immediabely poor 1o the daily detesmination of MAV pes uni,
prevadied abways that units shall be entitled $o a dividend only
frean the: day on which their subscription is sellled prior to 2P0
Liseesrnbouirg lme and thal units redecmed shall nol be entitbed
tor rescedve the daily dividend dedared on the setllernent day of

thedr redemgdion

Hon-Money Market Portfolios

The ned ineome of the redevant other Portlolios consists of

{1 interes sccied | discount eamed (nduding both onginal
isgie and markel discount) of olher Income eamed, (I less the
edimated expenses of the Portfolio (incuding management
feeg). In resped of each dividend declased, the Board of
Diveciors of the Management Company may determins if, and
to whal extent. such dividend s 1o be pald oul of undistributed
el e strmeent noomee, realised and unrealised capital gains,
regpacively increased of decreased by nel equalisation aadits
of debds

Annual report and audited financial statoments  [49]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

12. Credit Facllity

As al 31 January 2022, Income Strategles Portfolio was entitled
1o & credit Facility of LS 40 000,000 from Stale Street Bank
and Trust Company. As al 31 Janiary 2022, aloan of LISD

O was drawn down

A loan commitmen fee s charged on a daily basts i relation 1o
this credit Faality which 1s induded in the Siatament of
Operations and Changes in Ned Assets. The loan cormilment
fee consists of 015% chamged on the unusad portion of the
cresil Faciiny and the Federal Funds Effedve Rale o the
Uverndghd Bank Funding Rate (depending on which is aghe) +
0 90% margn spread on the used portion of the aedil Facilily

The comimitment fee is disclosed in the Statement of
Crperations under the caplion Loan commilment fees”

13. Financial Derlvative Instruments and Efficlent Portfolio
Management Techniques

Each of the Portlolios may usse derivatives 1o hedge markst and
currency nsk, and for the purposes of efficient portfolio
management

The use of derivalives may expose the Forifolios to a higher
deqres of nsk. In particular. dervative contrads can be highly
wolatile, and the amownt of nitial margin is generally small
reslaive 1o the size ol the contrad so thal transadions e
geared. A relatively small markel movement may have a
petentially larger impad on desivatives than on standard bonds
o equilles,

Prlesase reler to the Portlolio of Investments section bor more
details

14, Transaction costs

In order o achieve 118 Invesimenl objecive, a Portiolo will inour
ransadions cosis in refalion 1o trading adiily on its Portloio of
investiments. Disclosed in the table below are separately
identifiable iransacion costs incurred by each Portfolio for the
yvear endad 31 January 2027, Thaese include comrmission cosis,
setllement fees and broker fees.

Peatiobad

(ol Alkszation Podfoke UsH -

[50] BlackRock Global Invesiment Sories

oY Tramaction cosh

Gohel Equity ncome Poet ol Ush i v
rcome Sirafeges Porfolo ush LITE
Super Money Warkel Fund ush -
World Income Por ok LED —

15. Amounts due fromito broker

The Portiolios rade derivalives with a range of counterpanies.
The counlerparties 1o forward foreign exchange lransacions
and syap confracds ae shown in the Portbolio of Investments.

Cash collaleral is paid o recened on swaps 1o cover any
exposune by the counterpany 1o the Fund or by the Fund (o the
counlerparty,

Dz frormile Broker on the Statement of Nel Asses congists of
cash ollateral and margin pakdirecetved rom the Fund's
cleanng brokers and vanous counlerpariies

16. Subsequent events

Sinee the finandal yvear ended 31 January 2022, cortaln
hinandaal markets have fallen due pimarily to geo-political
lenstons ani=ng froen Fussta's incurson inlo Ukralne and the
impad of the subsequent range of sandions. requliations and
other measures which impaired nommal ading in Russian
securties. The Board of Directors of the Managerment Company
of the Fumd cominue to monitor investmeent pefor rance i line
with the Portlolios imvesimenl objedives, with no distuplion o
ihe operations of the Portlolios and the publication of nel assel
vaues

Effedive 14 March 2022, Tarek Mahmoud was appointed as a
Diraclor of the Board of the Management Company

Theere hawe been no olher evenls subsequent 1o the Anancal
weal end. and up to the date of the approval of the financal
stalernents, which in the opinion of the Board of Diredors of the
Managemeant Company may have had a materia impad on the
fircancial stalements for the inandal year ended 31 January
2022

17. Approval date

The Inancial slalements were approved by the Board o
Direciors of the Managerment Company on 25 May 2022
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In Issue Cammon Units

As at 31 January 2022, the Fund offers the following unit Common diztrbutng il in US0
poteke
Currant dsinbuting unitin USD

Imstituthomal | Uinits'

natiudonal | celribubng unil in 3D

Lia3a e it kng 13

Ryt o prabsbdion af bree SR

Unit Classes Launched
Tteer e were no unil classes launched during the year

Unit Classes Closed
There were no unil classes dosed dunng the year

[54] BlackRock Global Invesiment Sarias
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43

2021 31
2021 31
229,621,099 29,439,721
99,815,302 12,797,320
2(a) 329,436,401 42,237,041
2(a) 323 4
2(a) 91,717 11,759
2(a) 5,810,415 744,953
335,338,856 42,993,795
2(a) 3,032,067 388,741
2(a) 2,182,244 279,786
2(a) 688,934 88,328
2
(2).4.5.6.7.8 613,994 78,720
6,517,239 835,575
328,821,617 42,158,220
48
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 31 2019 31
( ) ¢ ) ( ) « D ( ) « D
328,821,617 42,158,220 286,402,315 36,719,641 364,468,623 46,728,522
( ) ) ( ) () ( ) ()
19.46 2,495 16.29 2,089 14.50 1,859
( ) () ( ) () ( ) ()
( ) 21.46 1,973 18.37 1,689 16.56 1,523
) () ()
( ) 132.21 111.61 102.05
43 48
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2021 31

286,402,315 36,719,641
2(¢) 1,024 131
2,060,259 264,146

2,060,259 264,146

132,380 16,972

15,160 1,944

16,401 2,103

91,375 11,715

68,675 8,805

5,742 736

10,906 1,398

2(c) 14,361 1,841
4,476,542 573,937

(4,476,542) (573,937)

2(a),2(b) 15,905,162 2,039,201
2(a),2(b) (898,962) (115,256)
2(d),2(e) (1,573,060) (201,682)

103/276
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50,445,218 6,467,581
2(d),2(e) (245) (31)
50,444,973 6,467,550

59,401,571 7,615,875

2(h) 49,374,920 6,330,358
2(h) (66,357,189) (8,507, 655)

(16,982,269)

328,821,617

(2,177,297)

42,158,220
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2021 31
12,328,745 1,630,038 2,105,475 11,853,308
5,492,390 1,101,178 1,904,906 4,688,662
17,473,793 4,430,720 5,437,260 16,467,253

43

48
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31

fonds commun de

2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12

registered offering

2020
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2021 31

16,100 0.01

25
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24 ()

(www.blackrock.com)
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2021 31
2021 31
2021 30
2021 31
0.768950 0.766950
0.784191 0.780945
1.125556 1.125492
0.163348 0.163002
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1.214850 1.212251
1.372601 1.372000
0.009544 0.009587
0.753778 0.752332
0.035711 0.035689

(f

11 13 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined
(¢
2021 31
(h
(i
2021 31 135,117
(a

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier

'
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(c
(a

0.33 0.75
(b

0.1667 1.00

2020 30
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0.025

1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2021 31

2021 31

61,000

2019 17
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2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01 2021 31

12
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(1)
(i)
12
2021 31
40,000,000

2020 11 65,000,000 40,000,000 2021 31

0.15 FED  LIBOR 0.90
13
14

2021 31

80,081

6,402

15
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16
2021

2021 1 31

17
2021 20
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2021 31
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2021

BiwchP ok
Gl ol
Brrreadmant Chohad o obar | Bty

Sevies AiBa saticn [0 S erbe i Supsr Mongy e | ne oo
Portiche Portfoko Blarket Fund Portiola

UsR 2 =D

Aftgts
Cecaption portiolio al ool

Inraalsed appracationdepracalion)

o al moarked valse ]

agl and dhddandgs recshvable

el s mokd
5,550 985

R TRy Tk

gl s e eaciation ¢

e Eopward foredgn achiangs hrarsadions Xy 72009

Tolal assels 3,993,341, 582

Liabilitios

Cash cwad 16 bark

£ pf il bd Xa) 2 151 283 11 4aT | TEOEEY 507 @y
I il el 2tay 249,723 104 a7
iay 140,527
aeiatian
ard foraion aoochangd arsediord = 2 I -
Acrued soqran sag and olher kabias Na)d SBTAE 155 4T B2, 304 1,194 @07 2T

Tedal Hakdliios TH3,TTEETE 6,517.23% T TIE5E0 12,594,080 TE, T1R033 23290
Tolal net sssols 3,200,582 TOT pri R ra GO TE0NED 261, sRARTT 2 4TELET.40T 9,515 48T

U i mtann based BT Tl cor il ITel it Pl 2o 8 Pl 270

& Board of Dreclars of 1tha Manag emant Comp any

Date J0 May 2021

Tho rebars o paage s &5 40 38 Formn wn indeges part of Tese Bnarcral o afsmant

Annual repord and audited financial stalemeants [11]
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2021

Comeny 3 Jarary 220 H Jammry 2018
Global Alocation Portialic
Tolal nel assels v 26811897 286,402,318 384.408.823
Bl 325l vl o
A Clats mom-Sieinb i g unsl LED 19 46 1629 14 50
A Clags non-diginbofing und ALD AD 3 46 1847 11321
A Class mondis nbitmg und JFY S 13221 LEREA 102105

Global Equity Inceme Penfalis
Tedal net assols LED RO T30 007133410 103,966,269
Ml mecal vl g Dl

£ ClLags Asinbul ED 1544 1495 1337
F Ciss dist =D 1798 1721 R
Income Strobegies Fortfolio
Todal net ossets UsD 281,584,877 39,099,892 338,167,587
Hal assal valua per
A Class distnbuting il LD .55 555 .
A Class distibuting unil SGD hedgad S60D 10 35 1038 {[ER R}
AD Class disinbuling urd w0 0.4% 3.4 817
Ui 556 555 a7
usn 10 08 10,03 R
J Class disiribyling gl LIED 552 554 -]
Super Money Market Fund '
Tolal nel o ols ugo ZATHAET. 0T 2.386.874.401 1475431196
Hed xspsl valus per
Common dighribiding wnd usD 1 () 1 0 § 00
Current digtritading und UED 100 100 100
Insftutional | digdribiding wnif UED 1 1) 1.4} 100

Warld Ineeme Partlalis
Tedal net sssots UED 20518487 28471301 28,850,564
Mol sl valug pel

A Clasiss distn 3 il UED 1156 1125 to.ra
A Ciags diginibiding unil ALD BID 1037 1046 1058
A Class i sinbuting unll ELUR ELR 9.86 G40 40

1) Sogeaet kool Wt iyl gt P CbriL A0 PRAOV o LIS 0 ] it 1 iy 2010 B cOMESTIR i Y b 1) Probiles Dot it el & et Wilhsh sy It FUnsl Placinsh i i
LT

T Nodas-on pagess £3 10 48 Torm &6 inbegesl part of T Bnanaal o alsmants

[12] BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

for the year ended 31 January 2021

BlackR ook Glotal
Ieresiment

Torias Cambined

Glotml & pation
Partielio

Globml Equity
Imvcon Porctiolia

Wot naseds ot tho boginming of the year 3,103,572.3248 286,402,315 100,733,419
It
Bari rtoras 2888 710 = =
Borwd &nd koan inbenes! 23020 3E5 == =
Diedderde (nal of wilhboldng las) e} 3415330 JA41 308
Management fos mbats L - —
Fo T 0 T — -
Tolal income = 2,444 16
Expensos
Bard: intaras! e 1460 -
Harssgoment o & 12674118 198 5]
Cisisbution faas '] LR 198 550
Ackwinigralion foes ] 2547
Ao leas r 15872
Lagal fess 46767
Preting & of e Tapairimg Toas ELOTT
Taoas 10 _ 18207
Coording ion Meas 5 EA&TS G2aT
Dapodfary (ol a £.T42 T4ES
Trarssfor agand foas i 40s o O
Loan commBmand Foas i3 i —
Miscallaneous foas 2z) 14,351 20002
_ Tedal apensos befora redmb urtg mant ILEDRR0T 4,476,542 30114
Zamimamen o s o _ SasLuw, rre -
Total axpondns after roimburs st 1878917 4,478, 5482 E30.116
Hat investment incomed{deficil) 15,810,233 (4478, 542 1,802 200

Rualizod gain on Invedmants
Flmaksed (ioss)
Mol Faakized ganin

43253804
130,296 604)

Fulues conlrad & 2(dp h.118) = =

Foragn carrencias. and forwand foneign aochangs rensactions )2 e} (3125337 (1 573 060) (352 o)
Swva p brardad|ond 2(dk 1]

Wt realised gainiloss) for the year 815378 13,433 140

Changs In urrsaliced apprecialion on inesiments 50,453 76 il 445 18

Changi in Une eaiisod [depred stion) on naeetm ents B,423297

Mal changa in uninsalited agpradabion! deprackalion) on

Fulumse conlract s 2[4} 201 = -

Foragn astences ard forwand fofegn i D b i) 2} Bl A2 (245} {&a8)
Swap transgdions b {3 78] = =

et change in unrealised approciation(deprecition) for the year 5B Q53 G604 50,444 973 3,171,293
IncreasaiDetroass) in mot assete o9 & rosdll of sparations §2,3T0.292 69,401,571 4,846,758

Mevemants b unit capital

Mal recalpls & & resul of 350 of urils 2R} T2.154 &9 AT4 530 GASS 410

Rl parym anl3 35 2 T6sl of rapurchasa of unts Zin 3EA2 85T 51T 1 @3} (18,595.640)
IncressoiDecroass) Im mel assots o8 & resall of movements in unit capital 44214877 (16,982 .2649) (92,410,270}
D darids doclarsd 1 [20 585 530 = 12219 628)
Wot nsaods of the end of (o year 3,200 3 TOT 328 41 BT a0, 780,349

T Nodas-on pagss £3 10 8 Tom &6 sbegral part of T Bnanaal o alsmants

Annual report and audited financial stalements  [13]
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2021 continued

Incoeme Strabegies Super boney
Bkt Fund
ush
Nt asadds o tho beginming of Bhe year FR00.8092 4368874401 54T
Incomas
Blari; inforas! TAMS 2874 Jas -
Bond &d boan Inbees 15,0656, Ta3 7,962,520 -
Devidends {mat of wilbhodding tah 264 260 = TG A5
Management tas rebate 174 — —
Otfor Incom e 26 955 2052
Tedal bncaorme 18318852 10,883, 7 TE4,518
Exponses
B irfonesl Hel — - 436
Manpgamoend fes & 1,738 004 LEAN e
Distabulion Taas & 1 440453 45 17115
Acdmandsirallon fodes & Pt Ha.m S0T21
Audd leas T 31.TH5 T2 55T 15121
Lol Taeis 45545 ¥ 23 19,208
Prirfing ard olhas raporing foass BE 06D E5401
Taoea L] 139187 Pl ] -
Coardination foas ] 2,125 74,128 652
Dapoaftary Teos 8 AT £ 3 Ll
Transfer agent faas 16774 107,565 2543
Loovary cammment foad 12 12T 1686
M il lanaoiss fods 2ial 4 83T = B1E)
Todal expondos bl ors remb urso ment 3090545 12,042,530 528, TES
Rabsmburssmant of @ipanses W B AR2 50 -
Tedal expantos after reimburs embnt 3080548 6,129.530 516, TED
Mt inwvesbment incomed{dalicil) 11335806 4, 75236 10 TS
Roalised gain on Invsstm anis Ha). b} 16 142 565 152 a8 1594 0D
Raakised (8] On Invastments il Wi [240TE072) (1,570} (@1, 404)
Ml raalissd gain/loss) sh
Fudures conirpct s 24} {1,118 == =
Foisign cavaencias ard forward foregn achangs Drarsactions: iy 20} (623553) _ {584 G50
Swa p brariadiond 2{d {15 300 = =
Met realised gainfloss) for the year (BITLATE) 150,415 (451,954}
Changs in unrealised appreciaion on imosiments 2807 A a 32004
Ghangs in uneaalised [depradation) on Wnasmants 5,670 6l = dAT O
Ml changa in unrealisad appreciatony depreciation) on
Fuluras conlrads = -
Forgdgn cunrenaas arvd forward forsign dchangs bransachions - ke
Swap bransedions — —
Wt change in unrgalised sppreciationi(deprocision] for tho your - 2834403
Increasa/Decroass) Im nel assols o5 o resull of operations 10,618.733 4.905,051 2567142
Movomants bn unit capltal
Ml receipls as @ resul of ipsse of unils 2n} 18,188 332 FE4E RS 544
Mo parym onlE &5 & rasul Oof repurdnise of unfs 2{h} 53,734,041} {3,538 855 Kl 5,015, 108)
InreasenDecroans) in nol asscte 6% & rosdll of movements in unit capital (36,547,709 109,993,006 @AFAAT)
DA dands doalared 1" (12,777 03 (4,005 041 | (B ETsy
Mot aesodn o tho ond of (B ydar I 594877 24TH 36T 407 20,515,487
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Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding

for the year ended 31 January 2021

Units gutstanding
# the haginning
of B ypar

Global Aocation Peralia

Lmity oyt nding
mt the end

of the year

& Class non-dist fbiding unil 12,320,745 (a8 2,103 PEESI I

A Clags m ALIC a2 178 s

A Clags non-disiribuling urid 52 \T vy ) 720 BT

GEobal Equity Inceme Portfalia

A Clags dicinkaf ing udl 34 516 B0 02

F Chase dstnbating unil 5 46 G554

Inome Stralegies Portlalia

A Class diginbufing ued 4900404 & T4 1,526 635 T S5
A5 g Lt S50 hedged 46,73 - = 3.1

: LHI 5 348 T 510 3 453

} Llans S nbLfrg urd

Super Monioy Market Fund

Comman destributing unit - R 0EY
£ 2454 709 150 et T |
unf 1064 062 Te BEA THE &S

Warld Incsms Portlalia

asz disirk

T Nodas-on pagess £3 10 88 Torm &6 isbegral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRodk Global Invesiment Senes (the "Fund’) is a fonds
commun de placement formed under the kaws of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembowg, The Fund s get up under Part Il of the
law of 17 December 2010 relating to underakings for colbecive
investment as amended {the “7010 L aw™) The Fund qualiies as
an allernative ivvestment fund (AIFT in acoordances with
Directve 2011/61EU of the European Parliament and of the
Coundl of & June 2011 on Alternaiive Investment Fund
Managers CAIFMDT) and the Lusembow law of 12 July

2013 on altes ative investment fund managers as amended (he
2013 Law™)

The Management Company 15 ned the allernative imestment
mamager of the Fund. To comply with the requarements of the
Moy Marked Funds Requlation (the "MMFRT, the
Mamagement Company appoinled BlackRock Assel
Mamagement Iradand Lirndted (the “AIFMT) @5 the alternative
investrment fund manager The AIFM will provide and procurne
the prowigion of imvestiment management services, incduding
portbolio and sk management fundions, for the Fund. The
AIFM is entifled 1o delegate is fundions, powers, discdions,
duties amd oblgatons. subjed o AIFMD requirements

Az al 31 January 2021, the Fund offered units in five Portiolios,
Global Alacation Portlolio, Global Equity Income Portlolio,
Income Strategies Poatfolio, Super Monsy Markel Fund and
World Incomes Portfolio (sach a Portfolo” and colledively the
P lbolios™ . Each Portlclio has dilferent mvestment objeclves
and invests mdifferent types of investiments,

Each Portfolio is a separale pool of assets and s represented
by separate units of each Portfolio which are divided into unit
clagses ag detalled on page 52,

The dasses of unis have equivalent rights in the Portiolios. bt
carry different features and charging struclures, which are more
lulty disaibed in the Fund's Prospedus.

Slgnificant events durlng the year

= On 11 May 2020, PNC Finandal Services Group e, a
substantial shareholder in BlackRodk, Inc., announced its
intent to sell this investiment through a registerad offering and
iefated related buyback by BlackReck, Inc.

= Effective 1 June 20220, the Japanese Agent Company -
hitsubishi UF. Morgan Stantey Securities Go Lid. changed
address from Otemachi Financial City North Tower. 9.5,
Otemachi 1 -chome. Chivoda-ku, Tokyo 100-3148, 1o
Otemachi Finandal City Grand Cube, 1-9-2, Olemachi,
Chiyoda-ku, Tekyo 1008127

2. Summary of Signiflcant Accounting Policles

The Iinancial statements have besn prepared in acoordance
with generally acceplad accounting principles in Luxembourg
and with the legal and regulatony requirements relating (o the
preparation of the finandal stalements as prescribed by the
Lisgemnbourg authonties for Lucembourg invesiment companies
and include the following significant accounting policies:

(&) Valualion of Investments and Other Assels
Theet Fund's wvestments and olher asgels are valued @3 follows
Hon-Money Market Portfolios

= Term koans are nol listed on any secunties ecchange. In
determining the Mot Assel Values {NAYV). the Portiolio ulilises
the valuations of lesm loans furnished by a pricing service
approved by the AIFM . The pricing seivice lyplcally values.
term loans &l the bid price when quolalions are readily
avallable. Term loans lor which quotations are nol readily
avallable are valued al falr markel value on a consistent basis
a5 destermaned by the pricing service using pricng matrices o
determine valuations, The procedwres of the prcing services
and is evaluations & e reviewed by the ivestment Adviser of
the relevant Portfolio {the “Investment Advizer”y under the
general supervision of the AIFM. The AFM has determined in
good faith that the use of a pricing sesvice 15 a fair method of
destermining the valuation of lerm loans,

* Porticlo secwnities consisting of equilles, bonds and other
delt instruments (olher than shorl-tenm obdigations but
incheding listed sswes) may be valued on the basis of prices
furmished by one or more pricng services which delemmine
prices bor nommnal, instilutional -size rading unils of such
securilkes using marked information, ransactions for
oomparable searities and vanous relalionships belwesn
securiies thal are generally recognised by msutionsl
Iraders,

Portiolo secimities thal ae isled on stock exchanges of
traded on other regulated markels are valued & the Bast
kncwin prices on such exchanges o markets as of the doss of
the business day mmaedialely preceding the valuation dale
with the eceplicn of Glabal Equily Inosime Porliollo o which
securities are valued al the valuation date the last known frice
a5 of 400 pom Luxemsourg tme (4P CET” o, ineach
case. the "Relevant Time"), If there are no such sales of a
particular securily, the value of such secunty will be the a2
avallable bid price of the Redevan! Tine or, in certain
circumstances, such portfolie securities are valued af the last
sale price on the exchange that is the primary marked for such
gecurities, of the last quoted bid price for those securies (o
which the Over-the-Counter {"OTC) marked such as MASDACL
1% dh pricvany o kel bor Beted securities,

= Investmenls in open-ended colled e Investmenl schemes are
valued on the basis of the asl available nel assel value of the
unils of such colledive mestment schems_

= Foeed income securities thal are nol listed on stock exchanges
or raddes] cn olher regulated merkets are valued al the last
avallable bid price of yield equivalents oblained from one o
more dealers or pridng services. Seouribes iraded in the OTC
rarked are valued at the last availlable bid pice. In cases
whese securilies ane raded on move than one exchange, e
securies are valued on the exchange designated by or under

Annual report and audited financial statements  [43]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

(ke clirection of the AIFM as the pramary manket. Portolio F
securilkes thal are traded both nthe OTC market and on a

slock exchange are valued according to the broadest and

mosl representalive marked,

= When markal quolations are nof readily avallable or the AIFM
dedegrines thal the independent malkel quolation does not
refled fair markel value, the AIFM will, in acoordance with
applicable laws, determine a fair markel value for that assel o
liability. When determining the poice for such an assel of
liabdlity. the: AFM may use one or mere of a vanety of fair
valuation methodologies {(depending on ladors including the
assel type). The AIFM might_ for example, price the assel
based on the orginal cost of the Investment o 1t mikght use
proprictary o third-peety models, mcluding models that rely
upon died portiolio menagemant pricing inputs and which
refled the significance attnbated 1o the vanous factors being
consld ered by the AIFM when il values the aseel andior
liability. s well &3 certain assumplions. The AIFM might also
use prices of aclual, executed, historical ransadions in the
assel andior liability {or related or comparable assets andior
liabilities) s a basis lor valuation or even use, wheres
appropriale, an appraisal by a third parly expenenced in the
valuation of simillar assels andior Rabililies.

As at 31 January 2021, the adjusted far value applied to certain
sicuries 15 disclosed in th lable beow

ol et
Assets

Fair valae

5100

Currenay

Income Slrateges Pordloio 5D 0m

Pleasa reter to the Portiolio of Invesiments section Bor further
details of the seanmies.

Super Money Market Fund

= The AIFM has established procedwes designed Lo slabilise, o
the exlanl reasonably possible and in accordance with the
MMFR, the Super Money Markel Fund's price per unit as by
computed for the purpose of subsoiplons and redemplions al
LESD 1 (thee “constant NANT. NAY s roumded 1o the neanest -
percentage point, of its equivalent in airmenoy Lems,

= The Portholio's underlying securities and money market
instruments are valued based upon thelr amortised oost. This
invobeies valuing an instroment sl its cost and therealter
assuming a conslant amostisation io malunly of amy discoun
of premium, regardbess of the impad of Muctusting interest
rabes on the marked value of the insiruments. Whibe this
method provides certainty in vauation, I may resull in periods
during which value, as delermined by amorlised cogl, s
higher of lower than the price the Super Money Market Fund
would Feceive il L sold the Instrurment;

L4

¥
"

The Poatholio 1s dassified a5 a shor tenm Public Debl CNAY
MMF and complies with the requirements under MMFR. As 5
resill of this, the AIFM hag introduced sdditional prodent and
rigorous lguidity management procedures 1o ensure
conpliance with any Hquidity thresholds appdicable 1o the
Portiolic;

[44] BlackRock Global Invesiment Sories

To assess whether the assels of the Portfolio ane suffickently
liquid to meed reasonably loreseeable redermplions and not
fonce assels from being kquidaled al discounted prices, the
volalilily of The Portlolio’s assels s requently monitored . The
AIFM may also apply one on more of the following messures

irrpersing bquidity fees on redemplions that adegquately
tefled the cosl Lo the Portolio of achieving Bquedity snd
enswre thal the uitholders who remain in the relevanl
Portiolio are not unfairly disadvantaged when olher uni
holders redeem thelr units duing the period.

i, within & period of 90 days, the tetal duration of
spspensions exceeds 15 days, the Super Money Market
Fund shall autormatically cease b be & shot-lerm Public
Dbt CHAY MMF and the AIFM shall inform unithaldaers of
s facl.

alter the Board of Directors of the Management Company
of the Porlfolio has determined its aourse of action with
regard o abowve apoints, it shall promply provide detalls of
its decision to the compelent authority of the Porifolio;

= lrrposing redennpbion gates that limit the amount of units o
e redeemed on any one working day e a maximiem of
108 of the units of the Portlolio for any period up 1o
15 working days;

= irrpesing a suspension of redemplions lor any penod of up
1o 15 working days, of

= daking no immediate acion other ihan fulfilling the obligaton
laid down i Article 24 {2} of the MMFR

The Portiolio caloulates a shadow NAY whereby umder bying
gecurities and money makel instruments are valued based
Upson @ ol B-lo-marked peice. In compliamce with MMFR
resjuiremaents, the diffesence between the conglant MAY per
unit and the NAY per wnil caloulated wsing mark-to-marked is
rmemiored and published daily on the website of the

MMF : warw ackrook com.

All Portfollos

Cash s valued 2 s nodrenad amont;

Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreaments
are: valued al cost plus accieed inlerest. Recetvable and
payatde balances melated o sepurchase agresments and
reserse repurchase agreements ae induded in the Stalerment
of Net Assels respedively under the caplions "Hecetvable bor
imvestmems sobd” and Payable for investiments purchased™
The accrued interest from reverse repurchase agresments is
inchaded in the Statement of Met Assels under the caplion
“Interest and dividends recervabde”,

Liquid asses such as money malkel msliuments are valued
o @ amed lised ool basis,

Azsets which indude, in particular, interest and dvidends
recedvable, receivalble for investiments sold and recetvable for
Fumad units subsoribesd are valued &t nomenal value;

Liatilities which indude, in particula, payable for investiments
purchased. payable for Fund units redeemed, interest and
dividends payalle are valued at nominal value
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

(b) Realised gains and losses on Investrments

Realised gains and losses on sales of mvestments have been
delermined on the basis of the average cost mathod

(=} Incoimed Expense from Investments

The Fund takes credit for income from its investmenls on e
fallowing biasis:

interest income ks accmed dally and includes the amorisalion
o a straight-Bne basts of premumes and accredion of
disentints

bank interesl s recogmsed on an accuas basls and indudes
Interasl iIncome from reversa repurchase agreaments,

dividend inconme: 13 accued on the eacdividend date and is
shown net of withholding L.

= lvcorms fromy reverse repurchase ransactions is incduded in
the Statement of Oparations under the caplion “Bank
Inlerest”;

= an imerest rate differential (IRD) is the difference in inberest
rales bedween lwo similar interest beaning securities which
arises from the carrency hedging process eq. il the 1 month
interest rate on LSD s 0. 25% and on AUD L is 1%, then the
irnplied IRD s 0 75% Traders in the foretgn aechange market
use IRD's when pricing lonward exchange rates. IRDs can be
postive, ml or negative. Inclusion of IRDYs in deidends mey
conshitube a payment from capilal in some junsdicdions. IRD s
recorded as miscellaneous fees in the Statement of
Operations and Chaniges in Net Assels

{d} Finanaal Deavative Instumenls

Duming the year, the Fund has entered into a numbser of lorward
foresgn exchange ransacions and lulures conliacts. Open
futures contracts are valued al the fair marked value to close the
comracts on the accounting date. Surpluses/deficils ansing from
these and closed unsettled conlracts are taken to unrealised
apprecation’(depredation) and are induded under assets o
liabiliibes {as appropiate) in the Stalement of Nel Assets. The
el change in wnrealised appoedalion of depreciation and the
ned realised gains of bosses on seitlement or closing
tramsactions of forwand foreign exchange ransactions and
futures contracts are presented in the Statement of Operalions
and Changes in Nel Assels,

Duming the vear, the Fund has enered inlo swap iansadions 1o
escchamoe the relurn generated by one imstrument for the relurn
generated by ancther investment. The Fund can wrile cred
defaull swaps (FCDSY) and purchase COS. When the Fund
writes andior purchases a CDS, a series of premiums is paid o
of paid by the Fund_ in return for 3 payment contingent on a
cresil evenl {prededinesd i the agreement). The premiums ae
inchuded in the oot of COS. Whese possible, swaps are s ked
te ket based upon daily prices obdained from thied party
pricang agents and verilied againg the adual make makes.
Where such quolalions are nol available swaps are priced
based upon daily quotations from the markel maker In both
cases changes in quolations are recorded as nel change in
unrealised appreciation or depredation in the Stalement of
Orperalions and Changes in Mel Assels. Nel realised gains or

hogsas on matity of lerminaton of the swaps and (he inlenest
eamed in relation o the swaps are presented in the Stalement
of Operalions and Changes in Nel Assels

Each Portfolic may sell call options and purchase put oplions on
slock ndices 1o seok o hadge portlollo secunlies against the
impad of antcipated general pice declines in equity makets of
spicilic industry sedors thereol. Options on indices ane simila
o oplions on secunlies excepl thal on exerdse of assignment,
the parties 1o the confrad pay or recetve an amounl of cash
equal o the difference babween the dosing value of the index
and the exercise price of the oplion tmes a specied mulliple
The elfectiveness of a hedge amploying stock index oplions will
depend pimanily on the degree of corelation belween
roevements i the vabue of the index urlelying the option and
in the portion of the portfolio being hedged, Among other
factors, the degree of correlalion wilh resped lo conver ible
saailies will be alfected by the degrea lo which the markel
value of poriloio securities is altribulable to thelr conversion
value The nel change in ungeslised apprecialion of depreciation
and the nel realised gains or losses on sxpaalion o closing
ransadions of oplions are presenled in the Stalement of
Operalions and Changes in Mel Assels

(&) Foreign Exchange

The costof Investments in aurrencles other than the currency of
denomination of the respedive Portlolio has been translated al
the rates of exchange ruling at the lime of purchase Markel
vale of investments and other assels in currencies other than
the: cumrency ol denomination of the respeciive Porticho have
been translaled a the exchange rate prevalling at the Portiolios
valuation polinl in Lieembourg a2 at 31 Jahuany 2021, The e
change in unrealised apgpredalion or depreciation and the net
realised gains of losses on disposal or selllement of other
assels of liabiliies in currencies other than the curency of
denomination of the respedive Portiolio are presented in the
Statement of Operations and Changes in Nel Assels

Income and expenses in curencies olher than the currency of
dencmination of the respedive Portfolio have been translated al
the rates of exchange prevaling on Wansacion date

Differant exchange rates are resulling from the pricing matrx
and different valuation points between the different Portfolios. In
the below Lable, the 4PM CET exchange rates on 31 January
2021 are presented bor Global Allocation Portfolio, Global Equity
Income Porticlio and World Income Portfolbio, the 5PM CET
excharnye rales on 30 January 2021 are presented for Inoome
Sirategles Portlolio and Super Money Market Fund

The following exchame rales were used to ranstate the
investimenls and olher assels and olher liabdities for all
Postiolios denomimated in cumencies olher than the base
currency of the respedive Portfolio a5 al 31 Janweary 2001

Annual report and audited financial ststoments  [45]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

230

Wi

{Fy Combined Financial Stalerments

The Combined Financal Stalements of the Fund are expressed
i USD and include the tola of the Inancal stalement s of the
different Portfclios

() Deferred Crganisational Expenses

Defesred organisalional expenses are capilalised and are

armc liseed on @ straighl-ine basis over a five year pesiod. As al
3 January 2021, all Portichos had fully amortised their deferred
ofganisalicnal expenses

{h) Income Equalisaton

Each Poetfolio follows the accounting praciice of equalisation 1o
prevent the undistributed imoome per unit from lucluating solely
by remson of subscriplions and redemplicns of Hs unils. Thisis
acoomplished by mantaining an equalisation account for the
redevant Porifolio. The equalisation account is crediled with thal
portion of the proceeds of subsoaibed units representing the net
undisinbuted income per unit of those units. and is debsed with
thal portion of any redemplion pay men representing nel
undisiributed income per unit of the redeemed units. A portion
of the dividends dedared by a Porticlio may consist of amounts
preadoudly ciodited 1o the equalisation acaounl. The yied
reporied o mvestors will indude amvounts paid from net inoonme
as well &z any amounl pald from the equalisation acoount

The Income Equalisation is induded i the Mevements in unil
capital in the Staterment of Operations and Changes in Net
Asgels

{1y Unfunded loans represent the remaining obdigation of the
Postbolio to the bomrower

As &l 31 January 2021, the Income Strategies Portbolio had an
unfunded loan of USD 135117 disclosed under Payable for
unfundead loan”in the Stalement of Nel Azsels

1. Management Company and Investment Advisers
(@) Managermem Compainy

BlackRock Fund Managemen! Company S A is the
Managemenl Company of the Fund. Pursuant 1o the
Mamagement Regulations, the Management Company has
agreed o rmanage the Fund's Portfelios for the exdusive
acoount of the relevant Unitholders. The Depositary and such
olher agenis as approprate. including Destnbutors of the Fund's
Linits in @nd oulside Japan are appointed by the Management
Company. The Management Company has delegated the
appointment of Distritators to the Principal Distributor

BlackRock Fumd Managemen! Company SA is a wholly owned
subsidiary within the BlackRock Group and i3 regulated by the
Commizsion de Surveiiance du Secleur Financier {TCS5F7)

[46] BlackRock Global Invesiment Sories

b AdF I

The Managemenl Company has appoinled BlackRock Assel
Managemenl Iraland Limited as the allernative investmeant fund
manager o providao and procure the provision of imvestment
ranagenenl sevices, Induding porticlio and nsk rmansagement
fursctions, fon the: Fund within the meaning of the AFMD. The
AIFM 13 entiled 1o dedegate i fundions. powers, discrelions,
duties and obligations, subjed o AlFMD requirements.

The AIFM is a wholly cwned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group amd is authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland

The AIFM is pald oul of the management fee due ko the
Managemenl Company, a5 oullined in Note 4

(e} Investment Advisers

Sulyed o the overall responsibility of the AIFM. each of the
Portfolios receives investiment advisony senvices from the
Ivesiment Advisers

Irvwewbern vl Achilaar

Gkl Allccalion Podlicha
Gl Equily InGomi Podtldig
roma Slreges Porfolo
Super Mongy Maks Fund
W Incoms Pafioks

ElackRack Jopan Ca_ Lid

BlachRock Irvsegt masrd Manggemend (L Lirsled
BlackRack Froaroal Memgemenl, In:
BlachRock Frandal Mamnsgement, Inc
EfackBack Japan Co_ Lid

The Ivestment Advisers form part of the BlackRock Group

The Investment Advisers ase each paid oul of the managerment
tee due o the Management Company, as outlined in Nole 4

4. Management and Distribution Fees

{a) Managemen fecs

Duming the: year the Fund paid managemem fees lo the
Managemenl Company

Their leveel of managerment fes varies from 0.33% o 0.75% per
annum of the MAY, with the exceplion of Class F unils, which do
ned pawy @ management fee bul ralthes alee o the Ivestiment
Advizer or alliliales under a separala agreament, The level of
ran agement fee vanes according o which Poriiolio and unil
class the invesior buys. These fees acorue daly, are based on
the: NAY of the rebevant Portiolio and are paid monthly, The
Fund's AlFM and Iwestment Adviser fees e bome by the
Managenwnt Company and paid through the management fee.

(b Dhistribartion fees

The Managemen Company has also entered into a Distribution
Agreerment wilh BElackRock Investimen! Managermsnl

(UK} Limdled {the "Prncipal Disinbutor”). The Princpal
Distritartor may conduds contraciual arrandgements with cerlain
Distritan ors for the distribution of units outside the U S such as
the Japanese stnbutors (as disclosed on pages 3 o d)

The leved of distribastion fee vagies from O AGE7% to 1.00% per
annum, of the MAV, with the exception of Classes AD units, D
units, F units. Institutional | unds, which do nol pay a distribution
ferix Thie level of distribution fee vanes according to which
Portiolio and unit dass the investor buys. These fess acrue
dally, zre based on the NAY of the reevant Portlolio and are
paid quarilery
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

The: mansagement and distiibution lees per unil dass for each
Pestiolio are disclosed in dedail in the Fund's Prospecius

Sinca 30 Apeil 2020, there has been a lea walver on
management fees distribution fees in place for the Super
Mesay Marked Fund's Cotmmmon, Current and Bstulkonal | units

& Coordination Fees

The Management Company has entered inlo an agreement wilh
BlackRock Operations (Luxembourg) 5.4 rl, (EROL )y pursuant
o which BEROL , under the direction of the Board of Directors of
the Management Company. provides certain corporate and
adrminisiralive coordination semvices on behall of the Fund

The coordination fee gate 15 0.025% of the average daly NAY of
the Fund {excluding Class F units), per annum

&. Administration Fees

Tha: Management Company has appointed State Streel Bank
International GabH, Luxembourg Branch, 49, avenue J-F
Kennady, L-1855 Luxermbourng, a2 the Fund's Administeative
Agent in Luxemboung 1o assisl the Management Company al ils
principal office in Luxembowrg with general sdministrative tasks
pursuznt io the Administration Agresmenl, agamst changing
usual fees for these services

7. Audit Feas
Defailed below are the fees patd (o Delosite Audil 5.4 ol for the
year ended 31 January 2021

Avi! 2nd sudd retsbed senaces faxciuding VAT) B0
hon-audd senaces -

8. Depositary Fees

The Management Company has entered info the Depositary
Agresrment with the Depositary, Slate Streel Bank Internstional
GrbH, Luxembourg Brandh. This agreament was amended
effective 17 Januzry 2019in Ine with the appointment of the
AlFM

The Depositary Agreement provides that all securities and cash
of the Fund, other than cash held in trading acoounts or hald in
any operaling accounts lor expenses or dividend disbursement
acoounts {which may be maintaned al olher banks), are 1o be
held by or to the order of the Depositary provided that the
Management Company may place cash in overnight call
acoounts or on lerm deposil with olher banks approved by the
Depositary, who shall conlinue 1o supervise such funds. The
Depositany 1s rasponsible for the colledion of principal and
inceme on, and the payment for and collecion of procesds of
securies bought and sold for the Fund. In line wath the
compliance of the AIFM and the Fund's compliance wilh AIFMD.
the Deposilany's role pursuant 1o AlFMD enhances Unitholder
protedion and includes the responsibilily 10 safekeep the assels
of the Fund and hold in custody all imanaal instruments, cash
and othar assals of the Fund (Lthe "Salekesping Fundion™)

The Depositary chamges the Fund fees tor these senaces in
accordance with its usual rales expressad as a fraction of a
percemage per annum of the net assels of the Fund. The
Depositary may appoinl one of more correspondent banks, and
It 1= espected thal the Deposiary relains a correspondant bank

in the United States, whose fees shall be borne by the Fund. As
pari of its Safekeeping fundicn, the Depossiary is hable to the
Fumd Tor the loss of Hinandal imstruments which are held i

custody

9. Transactions with Related Partles

The ultirmeste holding compsny of the Management Compainy,
the Principad Distibiitor, the AIFM. the vestinent Manages and
the Invesimenl Advisers is BlackRock, Inc, a company
incorporated in Delaware, USA, PNC Finanaal Services

Group Inc. was a substantial shareholder m BlackRock, Inc.
Whan arranging transacions in securities for the Fund,
companies in the PNC Group mey have provided securities
brokerage, forekgn exchange, banking and olher services, o
may have aded as pancipal, on thelr usual terms and may have
benefed thereliom. Commission has been paid o brokers and
agents in acoordance with the relevant marked practice and the
benetd of any bulk or other cormmission discounts or cash
comimissions rebates provided by brokers of agents have been
passed on 1o the Fured. The services of PNC Group companies
coufld have been used by the Investment Advisers where | was
comsldered approgeiate o do so provided thal their commissions
and other terms of business are generally compsarable with
these avallable rom unsassocated biokers and agents n the
markels concemead  and this is consistent with the above policy
of obtaining best nel results.

Duming the year there have been no significant transaciions
which were oulsida the ordinary course of business or which
were not on normal comimercial lernms

10. Taxes

Under present Luxembourg law and practice, tha Fund is nol
liabde to any Lusembourg ordinary income of capilal gains lax,
ned are dividends pald by the Fund subject to any Luxembourg
withbuolding tace. Flowever (he Fumnd is subject 1o 8 subsaiplion
tax {Taxe d abonnement”) of 005% per annum kevied on the
NAY of each Portiolio al the last day of each calendar quaiter,
in acoordance with the 2010 Law, excepl in resped of Super
Money Market Fund as woll as in respsect of the Portfolios or
unit dasses reserved for nstiuional investors within the
roesankng of Articke 174 of the 2040 Law, on which & reduced L
of 0.01% per annum is levied, For the year ended 31 January
2021, Global Alocation Porlfolio znd World Income Porticlio
hawe nol paid Luxambourg laxes, a5 no subsaiplion lax s paid
on the assels held by the Porifolios in cther undesiakings for
colledive lvestment already subject o that tax in Luxembourg

Undes applicable foresgn Lax laws, wilhholding Laxes may be
Impased on interest, dnvdends and capilal gans al vaious
rates,

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund

The nel income (e, acaued interest ncomea nel of accued
expenses) is decared as a dividend on each valuation date on
all units outstamding on thal day (o the Unitholders of recond
irmmmediately poor o the daily detarmmation of MAY per unil,
prowided always thal units shall be entitled to a dhadend only
froan the: day on which their subscription is seltied prios 1012PM
Lusernbourg tme and that units redesmed shall nol be entillad
Iy rescedve the daily dividend dedared on the setlfement day of
thedi redermplion

Hon-Money Market Portfolios

Thea net income of the relevant cther Portiolios consists of
{1} mteres accmed. discoum earned (nduding both orginal

Annual report and audited financial ststoments  [47]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

issue and marked discount) or olher income esaned . () less the
estimated expenses of the Portfolio (including ranagement
fees), In respect of each dvidend declared, the Board of
Direclors of the Management Company may determine i, and
oy whal extent, such dividend is o be pald oul of undistributed
nel investrment mcome, realised and unrealised capital gains,
respedivily increased or deageased by nel equalisalion aedits
of debils

12. Credit Facility

As @l 31 January 2021, Inoomme Stralegies Portbolio was enlitled
1oy a cresdit Bacility of WWSD 40,000 000 from State Sireel Bank
and Trust Company. The credil facality e limil chamged from
USD 65 000.000 1o LUSD 40,000 000 effective 11 May 2020 As
al 31 January 2021, a loan of USD O was drawn down

A loan comimitinent fee is charged on a dally basis i relalion to
this credit tadlity which 15 incleded in the Statement of
Crperations and Changes in Nel Assets. The loan commitrment
fee consists of 0.15% charged on the unused portion of the
aradil facilily and the Fed or LIBOR rate (depanding on which ts
highery + 0.90% margn spread on the wsed portion of the aedit
faility

The comrrdtrment fee 15 disclosed n the Statement of
Crperalicns under the caplion “Loan commitment feas”

13. Financial Derivative Instruments and Efficlent Portfolio
Management Techniques

Each of the Portiolios may use demvabives 1o hedge market and
aurrency sk, and for the parposes of efficient portiolio
rrdape el

The use of derivatives may expose the Fortfolios o a higher
degree o sk In paricular, derivalive conlracds can be highly
wolatile, and the armownt of mtial margin is generally small
resladive o the size of the contrad so thal ransadions are
geared. Arelathvely small markel movemenl may have a
potentially lamger impac on defivatives than on slandard bonds
of equilies

See furiher detalls in the specific Porliolio of vesiments.

[48] BlackRock Global Invesiment Sories

14. Transaction costs

In order to achieve its invesiment objective, a Por tiolio will incur
ransadions costs in relalion 10 trading acdhvily on its Fortiolio of
investirmens Disclosed m the table bedow are separately
identifiable ransadion costs inoumed by each Portfolio for the
wear ended 31 January 2021, These include commission costs,
sefllemnent fees and broker fees

Temrrmetisn £adte
(Fobal Allocation Podfoko usD =
Giobl Equity Income Postlobo D S
income Sirafeges Fodolo usD ga
S Mooy Warkel Fund VD -
Wor d e Porffols =] -

15. Amounts due fromito broker

The Portolios trade derfvalives with a range of counerpailies,
The counterpanies 1o forward foreign exchange transaciions
and swap contrads ae shown in the Pertbolio of Investmenls

Cash collateral is pald of recaived on swaps (o cover any
exposure by the coumerparty to the Fund or by the Fund to the
cotmierparty.

D fromito Brokes on the Staterment of Net Assets consigs of
cash collaleral and margin parditecaned from the Fund's
clearing brokers and vanous counterparties.

16, Subszequent events
Effective 1 Aprid 2021 | Svellana Bulvina and Leon Josephine
Schwab were appoinied as Directoes of the Board

There hawse been no olher events subsequent (o the Ainancal
wear end. and up lo the date of the approval of the inancial
statemients, which in the opinion of the Board of Diredors of the
Management Company may have had a malena impact on the
fincancial statements for the inandal year ended 31 January
201

17. Approval date

The fmancial slalerments were approved by the Board of
Diredors of the Managerment Company on 20 May 2021
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In lssue
As at 31 January 2021, the Fund offers the following umit
clasaes

A Clags disthbuling undl im AUD

A Chasz distrbuling uratin EUR

A Clazs distnbuting url im LS

A Clazz distibulin

C Class azlnbuling unitin VS0
Comman Units
Commen diatripuing unilin USD

F Inbuting wnitin USD

Instiutional | Units'

Inapliulional | desiribasting unilin S0

Unit Classes Launched
Ihere were no unit dasses launched during the yeas

Unit Classes Closad
These were no unit dasses dosed duning the year

[52] BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories
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2022
375,737,734.25 48,173,334,908
2,499,581.38 320,471,329
373,238,152.87 47,852,863,579
14,713,338
4,923,680
34,634,367
18.31 2,348
19.96 1,835
123.50
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50 6,411 2022
12.5 1,603 40,000

24

2019 17 2019 17
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2022
Tarek Mahmoud 0
EMEA

Joanne Fitzgerald 0
Leon Schwab 0
Geoffrey Radcliffe

0
Svetlana Butvina 0
Jonathan Griffin 0
Richard Gardner 0

1990

0

Deloitte Audit S.a r.1I.

Deloitte Audit S.a r.1l.

134/276



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022

2,541,919,299.92
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38 59

2022 31

128.21

23 103
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2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

831 106,543 831 106,543

2,966 380,271 1,215 155,775

954 122,312 5,667 726,566

3,920 502,583 6,882 882,341

4,751 609,126 7,713 988,884

10 500 64,105 500 64,105
11 591 75,772 519 66,541
1,714 219,752 5,566 713,617

2,805 359,629 6,585 844,263

12 1,946 249,497 1,128 144,621
4,751 609,126 7,713 988,884

2022 12

16 30
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2021 12 31
2021 2020

10,903 1,397,874 13,624 1,746,733

(10,600)  (1,359,026) (13,211)  (1,693,782)

303 38,848 413 52,951

(128) (16,411) (137) (17,565)

@ (128) 2 256

174 22,300 278 35,642

— — 3 385

174 22,309 281 36,027

(138) (17,693) (31) (3.,975)

36 4,616 250 32,053
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500 519 5,566 6,585
— — 36 36
— — 36 36
— — (3.816) (3.816)
— 72 (72) —
31 500 591 1,714 2,805
500 596 5,239 6,335
— — 250 250
— — 250 250
— an 77 —
31 500 519 5,566 6,585
64,105 66,541 713,617 844,263
— — 4,616 4,616
— _ 4,616 4,616
— — (489,249) (489,249)
— 9,231 (9,231) —
31 64,105 75,772 219,752 359,629
64,105 76,413 671,692 812,210
— — 32,053 32,053
— — 32,053 32,053
— (9.872) 9,872 —
31 64,105 66,541 713,617 844,263
30
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2021 12 31
2021 2020

36 4,616 250 32,053

Y, 11 (1,410) 3 385

— — ©) (385)

138 17,693 31 3,975

163 20,898 281 36,027

¢ ) (1,751)  (224,496) 369 47,309

¢ ) /1 818 104,876 (1,132)  (145,134)

(770) (98,722) (482) (61,797)

(138) (17,693) (31) (3,975)

(908)  (116,415) (513) (65,772)

13 (3.816)  (489,249) _ _

(4,724)  (605,664) (513) (65,772)

5,667 726,566 6,183 792,722

11 1,410 3) (385)

12 31 954 122,312 5,667 726,566

16 30
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2021 12 31

1855 35 35A,
Avenue JF Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

2022 12

12

12

2021
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)/

(

2021 2020
10,903 13,624
2021 2020
275 5,611
477 415
3,514 3,450
6,637 4,148
10,903 13,624
2021 2020
)/ (11) 3
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C )
2021 2020
104 —
1 €))
33 32
138 31
138 31
24.94 2020
2020
2021 2020
174 281
43 70
/C ) 1 €Y)
— 1
— 56
61 127
33 32
138 31
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
831 831
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
831 828
— 3
12 31 831 831
2021 12 31 30 (2020 31 )
12
10
831 (2020 831 ) 831,393 (2020 830,953)
2021 12 31 10,903 (2020 11,014
) 2021 12 31 2,592 (2020

583 )
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
374 632
2,592 583
2,966 1,215
10
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
12.50 40 500 40 500
11
10
50 2020 2021
165 2020
2016 93 2020 77
2021 12 31 541 2020 469
12

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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77 41
1,861 1,083
8 4
1,946 1,128

2021 12 31 2020 3,816
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2021
831 831

2020
831 831

2021 12 31

— 831
2,966 —
954 —
3,920 831
1,946 —
1,946 —

2020 12 31
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— 831
1,215 —
5,667 —
6,882 831
1,128 —
1,128 —

14
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20
20
17
2021
374
2020
632
2021

10,594
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BlackRock Fund Managemeni Company 5.A.

Statement of Finuncial Position ax at 31 December 2021

31 December 31 December

221 220
Mote 5 00 5 0
Assils
Non-current assels
Fimncial ssscls 7 331 23l
Current assels
Trade and other receivables 0 2 960 1,215
Cush and cosh equivalents 954 5.067
3020 .42
Tmal aesets 4,751 7713
Equity and Habilities
Equity
Share capita ] 00 S0
(her reserves 11 ] | 319
Retained earnings 1,714 55660
Total equry 1805 6,545
Current liabilities
Trade ana aather payahlos 12 1,946 1,128
Total equity and hiabidities 4.751 7713

Approved by the Doard on 12 May 2022 and signed on its behal by

M Joanme Fi!l.;&.';:'r.ulll
Pircetor
- o

a—

Mr Geoff Radeliffe
Director

Lhe notes on pages 16 to 30 form an mtegral part of these Inancial statements.

Page 13
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

wzl 2020

Nole 5 00 5 v

Kevenue 4 10,903 13624
Cosl ol sles (1 0.6 (13.211)
(ross profit 303 413
Admimistrative cxpenses {128} (137)
Other (losses)'grins {1 2
Operating profit 5 174 275
Finance income - i

Prrolit before tax 174 251
Income WX expense [ {134) 31y
Profil for the year £l 2510

I'he above results were denved wholly from continmung operations.

Lhe notes on pages 16 to 30 form an mtegral part of these hnancial statements.

Puge 12
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

w2l 2020
Note 5 Ui 5 UM
Cash Nows from operating activities
Profit for the vear 3t 250
Adjustments o cash Mows rom non-cash iloms:
Forengn exchange (gam)/loss 5 (1) 3
Tinanee incoms - (3
Trcomms: s cxpense [ 138 il
163 251
Workmg capital adjustments:
{Incremse)'deereuse in ade and other receivables 0 {1.751) 360
Increase{decrease) mn trade and other pavables 12 513 {1.132)
Cash generated from operations (7700 (482)
Inconme wmxes paid {138} {31y
Mel eash Mow from l:l_gn:mﬁﬂg wELVILIS {H8) (513}
Cash flows from financing activitics
Dividends paid I3 {3.816) -
Met decrease m cash and cash equivalents (4.724) (313)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 5667 6183
FiTecel of exchange e Tuclusions on eash beld 1] (3}
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December G54 5.067

Lhe notes on pages 16 to 30 form an mtegral part of these hnancial statements.
Pagec 15
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

1 General information
The Company is 4 private cornpeany Timited by share capital incompoerated and domiciled in Tuxembourg

The address of 1ts registered office 1s.
35A, Avenve JF Eennedy
Luxembowg

L-1835

Ginird Duchy of Luxembowg

These financial statements were authorised for issne by the Board on 12 May 2022

1 Aceounting policies

Summary of significant accounting policies and key sccounling estimales
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparaion of these financial statements are set our below.
Ihese palicies have been consistenily applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The lnancial stalements have heen propared in secordimee with adopled TFRSs a8 approwed by the FU and
uncer historical cost accounting rules. except for the revalusnen of any financial instruments held at fair value
or ather relevant standards Ilistorical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.

{zoing concern
The Company's business activities, together with the factors likely to alfect s future development, performance
and position, are sct oul in the Dircctons” Boeport along with principal risks and uncertaintics

In assessing the poing concemn sty the diteewors have ken o secount varous Geetors, including the
firzancaal position of the Company and in parbcular the sigmificant net cash posibon. The Company has, al the
dister of this repaort, suflicient existing fmanees availshle for its csimmated regquirements for the next 12 months
Thix, together with its proven ahbility o peneoie cash rom operations, provides the dircciors with the
confidence that the Company is well placed 0 manage its hisiness risks seceessully

After making appropriate enquuries, e directors have a rensonnble expectation that the Company s adequate
resources o contmue i operational existence for the foreseeable fature, being at least 12 mouths from the date
of thas report. Accordingly, they continue 1o adopt the going concern basis 1 preparing the Directors’ Repor and
finamcial statements,

Changes in aceounting pelicy
New standards, interpretations and amendments adopled

Mone of the standards, iterpretations and amendments effective for the first tme from | Janwary 2021 have had
a matenal effect on the financial statements,

Puge 16
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continuwed)

Revenue recognilion
Hecagnifian

The Compamy cams revenue from the provison of services relating 0 myvedment msnagement and
adminisiration fbes, and distibution fes. Rovenoee i recogmisad upon wamsler of contro] of promised scrvices w
custmiers, 1 when {or as) a perfirmance obligation i stisfod. in anoameunt that reflects consideration
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for these serviees (the "irmnssction price™). The Company
enters inbe contrcts that can mclude multiple services and. i oceruen instanees, may charge & "umitary fee” w
eonvir Lhise services. Such lees are secounted Tor separately iF they are determined o be distinet. Consideration
for the Company's services is pencrally i the T of varisble constdoration becase the amounl of fies is
subyect to market condibons that are cutside the Company's wilwence, The Company mchudes vanable
conssderation as part of U8 transaction price wiwen i is loghly probable that a sigiaficant reversal will not oocur,
e, when the associated uncertunty 15 reselved. For some contracts with customers, the Company imvolves thard
parties and related parties i providing services to the customer. Generally, the Company is deemad 10 be the
pricipal m these arrangements becaose the Company controls the promused services before they are transferved
1o customers, and accordingly presents the revenue gross of related costs,

Puge 17
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BlackKRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continuwed)

Fee arrangements

Below are detmls of fee amrangements and how these are messured and recognised, for revenne from the

provision of services:

* Investment manngemont Tees: The fees are recogmsed as the services are perfomed ove tme. Such foes are
prmarnly hased on agrecd-upon percentages of net assel valoe or AT, These Tees are alTected by chianges
i et asset vahee or AUM, including market appreciation or deprecintion, foreign exchange translation and
pet wflows or cutflows. Investment management fees for mvestment funds are shown pet of fees wanved
pursuant to contiectual expense limitations of the funds or voluntary wavers. Fees are generally invoiced
myoeithly in amears.

«  Dhistribution fees: The Company aceounis Gior G distribution services snd sharcholder servicing as distined
services, separste from fund management servaces, beease customers can benelil fom cach of the servaces
on their own and because the services sre separntely identifisble (hat i, the neture of the promised services
1% b ramelier each serviee mdvadually). The Company records sales commasaons s distobution lee revene
fior serving as the principal underwriter andior distributor for certain mute] funds it 60 manages
Distrbution fees are generally: based on nel asset values and are recogmised when the services are perfommed
andd the amoamt is known. Comscguently, s portion of the distibation foes the Company recopmised may be
rebated 1o the services performed in prier perieds (hat met the recopnition eriteria in the curent pensd. The
Company reeopmises oneing sharcholder semvieing fee revenue when and ss sharcholder serviees are
perfimmed over ime. The Company contracts with thind partics fin variows Gumd distribation serviees and
sharcholder servicing of cortam Nunds o he perfrmed omoats behal [ These smmmpemenis are gencedly priced
as a portion of the fee pad to the Company by the furd or as an agreed-upon percentage of net asset valtue,
The Company presents its distnbution fees and distibuion and servicing costs mnewrred on a gross basis as it
5 deemed 1o be the principal in such Iransactions.

Foreign currency transactions and halances
The tinancial statements are presented i US dollar, wiuch s the currency of the prinsary econonuc enviroument
1 which the Company operates (1ts functional cutrencv),

Transactuons wn currencies other than the Company's Rictional currency (foieipn currencies) are recogsed at
the rates of exchange prevaling on the dates of the transactions. At each statement of finencial posiuon date,
monetary ossets and Liabilines that are depominated in foreign cumencies are retranslaoted at the rates prevailing
at that date. Exchange dufferences on monetary iteus are recognised i the meome statement i the period in
which they arise, Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated. MNon-monetary items carried at fair value that are dencmunated i foreign currencies. are tronslated
ot the rates prevatling of the date when the far value was determined. Exchonge differences on non-moaetany
ttems, measured at far value through profit or loss ("FV'IPL"), are reported as part of the far value guin or loss
in the income statentent i the period m which they anse,

Tax
Inconre wx expense represents the sum of the 1ax currently pavable.

The current income s charge s celeulated on the besis of o rates amd B that hove been onseted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and gencrales taxable
i,
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BlackKRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continuwed)

Financial inslrumenis

Hecagmition and devecognifion
Finaneial assets and lnamcind Babilities ane recognised on the rade date when the Company becomes parly
the coniraciual provisions

Finamein] assets are derocopmised when the contmetual rights 1o the cash flows expire, or when the linancial
Assel amd substantally all the nsks and rowsnds ane mansfered. Financial hehilies are dereeoenised when the
ehligation is extinguished, discharnged, cmeclbad or expirad

Classificarion and fnitial measyremont af financial assets

All financial assets are msteally measured at far value adjusted for transaction costs (where apphcable), except
for wade recervables that do not contain a significant financing component which are messured at transaction
price.

Financial assets are classified and subsequenily mensued, based on business model and contractaal cash ow
characteristics, at, amortised cost, fan valve through profit oo loss ("FVTPL™), or far value through other
comprebsnsive weoms ("FVTOCT").

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in the income statement are presented
within finance casts, finance income or net gains or losses on derivative financial instriments, except for
impairment of rade receivables which is presented within administrative expenses

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising on financial assets a1 amortised cost are presented in the incomes
statement within administrative expenses and disclosed in note 5 Tor financial assets at FVTFL. the foreign
exchomge component forme part of the Gur value gains o losscs and 15 reeognised i the income statement
within nel s on denvabive Bnancial mstruments.

Snbsoquant measiirentant of financial azeet

Financial assels af amorfised cost

Fimancial assets are mensured at amemised cost when therr contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and imterest and they are held within a business model designed to hold the asset and collect its cash
flowvs (and are ned designated as FVIPL)

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and trade and cther recervables are mensured at mmornsed cost vsing
the effective iterest method and income 15 recogmsad on thas basis,

Fimancial assels of fair value through profit or foss
Financial assets that are held other than ‘hold to collect or Thold o collect and sell’ are categorised a1 FVTPL.

Further, irrespective of business model, financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principall and imrerest are sccounted for at VTPL.

The Company has not designated anv amortised cost or FVTOCT financial aszets at TVTFL

Tmpairment of finarcial assels

Al debt-type financial assets, which are not measured at FV1PL, are mssessed for meparment at each reporting
dare using a forward-looking approach by identifving expected credit losses ("CCLs™),

Impairment provisions for trade receivables are recognised based on the simplifizd approach using the lifenime
ECLs and the single loss-rate approach.
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BlackKRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continuwed)

For odher fimmeial asccts, where credit sk has nol mencised sipmifeantly: sinee initial ocopmition, twelve
momth ECLs nre recognised For those where credit nisk hos increased signuficantly, liteume ECLs are
recognised.

For nssets beld at amortised eost, any ECL 18 recopnived m the meome statement with a corresponding
adjustment to tee asset’s carrving value through a provision account, For assets held at FVTOCI, the loss 5
recopiised in other compiehensive meome and accumulated i the ivestment revalustion fesenve.

Classificarion and measwrement of financial Nabilifies
Financial liabilines are initially measured ar fair valoe and, where applicable, adjusted for ransaction costs
unless designited al FVTPLL

Subseyuently, fnancial Habilities are mesured st smonised cost wing the elfective interest methed excepl Gor
contimpent consideration soyaired in o business combination, held for rading inbalites (neleding denvatives)
and fmancial liahilities designated at FVTPL, which wre st fair value with gains or losses recogmised in the
iname stalemamnl

Ihe Company's financial liabilities o amortised cost are trade and other pavables. [he Company has not
designated any financial liabalies at FVITPL.

In the mcome stwement interest-related charges are included within finance costs,

Foreign exchange gam or losses ansing on financial liabilities at amortised cost are presented in the mcome
statement within administrative expenses and disclosed in note 5.

Dermvanve finareral invivimmenrs

The Company's denvative financial inmstruments, forwards and toreign exchange, are measwed at FVTPL. In the
staternent of financial position, derrvative financinl mstruments with positive fur values (unrealised gains) are
ncluded as nssets and denvative financial mstruments with pegative fair valaes (unrealised losses) are iscluded
a5 Lisbalities.

Ihe Company uses denvative fnoncial mstuments (o econonucally hedge fsk associmted wuh foreign
exchange movements and market pnce exposure with respect to certmin seed mvestments, It 15 not the
Company®s policy o trade in denvative nsinements and hedge accounung s not applied.

Eguity insfrumenis

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recogrused of the procesds received, net of direct issue costs. [he
Company’s ordinary shares are classified as equity insruments.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Aricome raxes

The Company s subpect to wcome tax and judgement 15 required m determumng the provision for tax, There are
ey transections and calcwlations for which the ultimate tax deternunanoen is uncertain. If s probable duat de
1ax authossty will accept an uncertain tax trestment, the Company measures s wmeome taxes i the finmncial
strements consistently with the tax weaiment used in its income tax remumn. Otherwise, it measures the effect of
the wncertainty wsing either the most Likely amount or expected value method. Where the final tax omtcome 15
different trom the amounts that were initally recorded, such difterences will impact the current inconse 1ax

the period 1 which such detenmination is made.

Tull detaals are sef out In note &

4  Mevenue

Investment management and dismbution fees

Amnalyvsis by investment styvle

Cash managemen:
Fayuity

Fixed income
Muln-ascet

Contract assels

2021 Oz
5 00 5 000
10,903 13,024
21 2020
5000 % 000
275 54611
377 415
3514 3450
6637 41458
10,903 13,624

Comiret sssels relate w the Company’s conditionn] mighis o consideration for serviees, primemby relating w
acerwed income Tor unbilled services. These are disclosad ss accmed meome innole 9

5 Operating profit
Aurved nt after {crediungVicharging

Foreign exchange (pains)losses

021 2020
5 00 5 000
{11 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

6 Income tax

The Company s subject s Tusembourg comporale meome B, municipal business G and nel wealth tax, The
charge allocated to the Company a5 part of the fiscal wty to which it forms a past of, represenung corporate

neome tax, mmumcipal business tax and net wealth tax s shown below:
Tax (crediedycharged in the income statement

200
5 00

(th
32

il

202

S 00
Current taxation
Luxemhourg corporation tax 104
Luxemboury corporation lax sdjusimenis in respect of prior penods |
Met wealth tax 33
Tuval currenl income Lax 138
I'nx expense i the mcome statement 135

i

The ax o proslit befone tas Gor the vear s higher than (20200 Tower thean) the sandard e of corporation s in

Tuscmbowry of 24 94% (20200 24.94%)

200
5 000

251

7
(n

|
&

(127)
2

21
S 00
Profit before tax 174
Corporation 1ax at standard rate 43
Increase {decreass) in current 1ax from adjustment in respect of prior
pericds |
Ineresse from elTect of expenses not deduetible in delermining taxable
profit =
Increase anisimg from effect of fiscal umty
Increase/{decrease) in current X from unrecognised foreign exchange
gains or losses from tax balance sheet revaluation ]
Met wealth tax 33
T'otal tax charge 138

E]|
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

7 Financial assets
31 December 31 December

ik} iy
5 04 5 000
Non-current financial assels
Financial assets at fan value through profit and loss #31 83l

Maovement in non-curvent financial assels
31 December 3 December

21 2020
5 000 5 00
Cost
At I Jamuary #31 RI8
Additons - 3
At 31 December 831 231

Finsmeial sescls al Far value througeh prolil and Des represent ihe Company’s holdings m the Super Money
Murket Fund, sis oullimed im mode 8. Additions represent reimvested distributions.

5 Interesis in anconselidated structured entities
The AUM of the Company as at 31 December 2021 was 53 0bo (2020: $3.1ba).

Ihe Company manages imvesonent funds which are considered to be structured entities within the defimtion of
IFRS 12 ‘Iisclosure of Interests in Other Entities’. Structured enttes are not consolidated as the Company does
mot have "control” as defined under IFHS 10 'Consobdated Finsnoal Statements’. The Compony recerves an
interest in these unconsolidated structured entities through the recept of mvestment management, administration
and distnbunon fees from related parties. The unconsobdated structured entities are constituted as open-ended
and closed-endad investment companies.

I'he unconsolidated structured entities have various imvestment objectives and policies and are subject o the
terms and conditons of their respective offening documentation. However, all unconsolidated structured entings
invest capital primarily from third-party imvestars in a portfolio of assets in order to provide a retum to those
investors from capital appreciation of those assets, income from those assets, or bath. Accordingly, they are
suscephible to market price nisk ansing from uncenainties about future values of the assets they hold

The unconsolidated structured entities are nanced hrough cquity capital providid by imvestars. Additionally,
the Company holds an investment of 831,393 umits (2020: 830.953) in BlackRock Glohal Investment Series
Super Money Warket Fund with n value of SR31E (20200 S831%k). See nole 7 for detils

The fies received duning the year o 31 December 2021, in relation w the above, were $10.903k (2020

S11.004k). The camrying value on (he stalement of nancial positon as 20 31 December 2021 = 82,592k (2020:
S383Kk]), A ropresented by aterucd income
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

& Imterests in unconsolidated structured entities (continned)

Maximier exposure to [pss

The Company's maxmum exposure o loss assocuted wath its interest in these unconsolidaed strectered entities

15 liuted to the camyving amounts shown above.

Fimancial sippart

I'he Company has not provided financial support w any of its unconsalidated structared entines during the year,
and hns no contractual obhgations or current intention of providing financial support 1n the future.

e mitrmation

Ihere are no differences to the economic or voting nghts attaching to the equity held by the Company from
those held by other investors. There are no hq'uu:hl} arrangements. gusraniees or other commitments that may
affect the fair value or risk of the Company's interest in the unconsolidated souchired entities

% I'rade and other receivables

31 December 31 December

i oo
5 000 5 000
Recervables from group companics iTs 632
Accrued wrcome 2502 583
2066 1.215
All rrade and other receivables are due within one vear.
10 Share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid sharces
M December 3 December
oz 2020
Na, 004 § 000 No, 00 § (0
Ordinary shares of 812 50 each 40 ikl ik S
Page 24
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

11 Other reserves

Tagal reserve
Luxembourg comparues are required to appropnate to the legal reserve a nummum of 5% of the annual net
income, after deducting any losses brought forward, wil such reserve equals 10% of subscribed capital,

I'his reserve may not be distnbuted, m the form of cash driadends or otherwise, dunng the life of the Company,

Mo allocatons were made mn 2020 or 2021 as the maximun S50& had already been reached. Ths reserve 15
included as other reserves i the saement of financial position,

Nel weallh fax reserve

The members” general mesting has ranfied the creation of a special pet wealth tax reserve in order 10 reduce the
net wealth tax pavable by the Company. This special reserve amounts to five times the envisaged net wealth tax
credit. This special net wealth ax reserve hos o remsin unavaillable for distnbution for five years o ke
advantage of the reduction in net wealth tax liahility. This reserve is included as other reserves in the statement
of financial position

Drring the vear, amounts totalling 163k (20200 Snil) were allocated 10 the et wealth max reserve

Additiomally, amounts wotalling $93k (2020 577K) relating W amounts imnsfomed pre 2006 were released from
The meet wealih i roserve o rebiimed camings

The net wealth Lax reserve sl 31 Deoember 2027 ameunied 1o 3541k (2020: 3469k)

12 Trade and ather payahles
31 December 31 Necember

w 020

5 00 5 00
Acerued expenses 7 41
Amounts dus to group compantes 1.B61 1083
Met wealth tax liabiliry 3 4

1o 1125

All wade and other pavables are due withun one year.

13 Dividends

The directors propose o final dividend of SMil (2020: 53 816k) be made in respect of the financial venr ended 31
December 2021 |
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

14 Fair value measurement

The Fair vaelues of financial wsscts and Tmanced Dabilives are daermined as ollows:

Lewel | - fair value measurement derived from quoted prices (imadjusted) in active market prices for identical

assers or linhilies.

Level 2 - fair value measurement denived from inputs other than quoted prices inchuded within level | that are
ohservahle for the asset or labiliny, either directly (Lo as price) or indirectly (i.e derived from prices)

Lewel 3 - fair value measurement derived from unobservable imputs for the asset or lisbility

The following tahles provide the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Compamy's assets and liahilities

Assets measured at Cair valoe
021

Equity mnstruments

Assets measured at Eair value
2020

Fayuily nstrumenis

Tevel 2
5 004
B3

Tolal
5 00
Rl

Toaevel 2
5 00Ky
&3l

Tivial
§ 0
Bil

I'here were ne changes to the valuaton technsques during the vear.

15 Classification of financial and non-financial assets and financial and non-financial liahilities

The classification of fmumcial assel and Gnancial lisblites by aceounting calegonisation for the vesr ending 31

Pceomber 2021 was ms follows

Assets

MNun-curreni assels
Ohther non-cuwrent finnncial assets

Current assets
Trade and other receivahles
Cash and cash equivalents

Toaal assets

Financial assets
& liabilities at
amortised cost

- Mandstory

5000

2,966
954

Financial assels
& liabilities at
FYIPL

- Mandatory

5 000

3820

#il
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

15 Classification of financial and non-financial assets and financial and non-financial liabilities

{eontinmed )

Linbilities
Current liabilitics
Trade and other payables

Total linbalites

Finuncial assels  Financial assels

& liahilities al & liabilites al
amuorlised cost FVTPL
= Mandatory = Maundstory
5 (W % 000

1546 -

1,946 =

The classification of financial assets and financial liabilities by accounting categonsation for the vear ending 31

December 2020 was as fiollows:

Assets

Non-current assets
Other non-current financial assels

Current assets
Tl‘aﬂ.l'.'. al‘lsl |!||.1'||..:r n::.'n..'l"l. th\_"'\i
Cash and cash equvalents

Total assets

Linbilitics

Current liabilitics
Trade and other payables

Total linhalities

Financial instraments measured al fair value

Financial assets  Financial assets
& liahilities at & liahilities at
amartised cost FYTIL

- Mandatory - Mandatory
5 () 5 00
8il
1.215
5,667
482 53l
1,128 =
1.128 -

For details of the fair value hierarchy and valuation methods and assumptions refer to note 14,

Financial instruments not measurcd at fair value

e 1o thewr shon-term natre, the camving value of cash and cash equavalents, trade and other recervables, and
trade and other payvables approximates thewr value after taking into sccount BULs. At the statement of financial
position date, no allowance has been recopnised for impairment of trade and other receivables as TOLs are

considered to be immaterial.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

16 Financial risk review
This make presents infirmaticn shout the Company s cxposure i nancial risks and memagement of capital

Credil risk and impairment

Credat nisk arises in relation 1o trade receivables, sumplus cash held i bonk accounts or held on account with
ather BlackRock group companses as part of normal treasury operattons, and other asset ivestments. The nisk
of defanlt m refanon to trade recevables ansing from fee mcome debtors 15 considered low and the Company
mimumises exposure o credit nsk with respect to trade receivables by actively pursmng seitlement of
outstanding management fee mvoices withm the terms and conditions of the underlving fgreement.
Imtercompany balonces are monaged centeally and agreed upon and senled on a regular basis,

Muost receivables thar are averdue are not considered 1o be impaired. A receivable will nod be impaired unless
the expected cash flows, discounted at the onginal effective mierest rate, are less than the camying valie. For
rade receivahles, the Company adopas the simplificd single loss rate approsch o determime s sversge
historreal boss mie, balding inio this caleulabion [uiure events and the Tikelibood ihat debt wall be recovercd n
the futwre. The resulting ECL rate is immeaterial o the Company and noosllowsnes has been recognised

The Compuny applics a practical expedient o ils asessment of FCLs for intereompany receivables. Gaven the
lack ol inwrcompany defils i the past and folere projected resulis, the Company does mol propose
recopmixing an FOLL allwamece on amy of i intereompamy positions. The ECLs on mher receivablies sre
comsidered o be immeaterial and o allowanes hos been recogmised in the lnncid sscments

I'he camying amount of the financial assets disclosed i note 15 represents the Company™s maximum exposure
10 eredil sk as no collateral or credit enhoncements are held,

Market risk

Mhrkiet msk s the nsk that the Company’s capital andior carmings. mey be mpacted by changes m forein
exechongse rates, interest rtes snd market prices

Forelgn exchange risk

Forcign exchange risk arises. whore the Company's foreigm currency assels are nob madched by liabilitics
demominated i the same cormeney. Inadditim, forciem exchange exposures anse on a rnsactional basis krgely
in relation W fee income which is denominued inonon-functional correncies. The Company denives revenues
from mvestiment management, adonmstretion and distibution fees denoounated i US dollar. Expenses are
muunly denonunated i Euwro and as & consequence the Company’s revenues mmy fluchue as o result of Ewo
and US dollar exchange movements,

Foreign currency exposures are monitored regularly and mimmused. Foreign currency exposuees that anse m
relation to pon-operational items are usuallv large in nanure and are managed on 8 case-by-cnse basis. Foreign

Curency exposures relating to imtercompany payables amd recervables with other BlackRock group entitres are
managed wtilising toreign exchange forward contracts.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

16 Financial risk review (continmed)

Sensitivity amalysiy

I'he sensimvity analvsis covers the financial instmuoments at each of the statement of financial position dates and
assumes changes i market vanables. It should however be poted that due to the inherent uncertainty in the
world of financial morkets the assumptions neade mav differ significantly from the actual outcome particularly
as market nsks tend to be imerdependent and are therefore unlikely 1o move m solation.

Curo exchanpe rates are assumed fo Increase or decrease by 200 2094 is the sensitivity rate used when
repornng forsign cumrency risk mternally o key management personnel and represents mansgement’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change m foreign exchange rates,

17 the Fur exchanpe rate meresed by 20%, profit and equity would ineresse by $5k.
0 the Fura exchanpe rate decreased by 2084, profil and oguity would decresse by 57k
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

17 Related party transactions

The transactions with relaicd parties that ocewerred during the vear related o service charges with other entitics
controlled by the ultimale parent undenaking.

Income and recelvables from related parties

Felliw
subsidiaries
i 5 00
Amesunts receivihle from related party 374
Fellow
subsidiaries
2z 5 004
Amounts receivahle from related party 632
Expenditure with and pavables to related partics
Fellow
subsidiaries
1 5 U
Crutsourced AIFM services and retrocessions 10,594
Olher expenses —_ %
L0680
Amounts praviehle w related panty 1.861
Felliw
subsidiaries
I 5 0na
Owisourced AIFM services and retrocessions 10,150
Other expenses 92
10,242
Amounts pavable to related party 1.083

There were o losns o amy related partics during e vear,

14 Parent and ulidmate parent underiaking

The Company's immediate holding company is DlackRock Group Limited - Luxembourg Branch. The ultimate
parent company and controlling party is BlackRock, Inc, a company incorporated in the State of Delaware
the United States of America. The parent company of the largest and smallest gronp thar includes the Company
and for which group accounts are prepared 15 DlackRock, Inc Copies of the group financial stalements are

availahle upon request from the Investor Relations website at www blackrock com or requests mav be addressed
fo Investor Relations at 55 Last 32nd Streer, New York, NY 10055, USA or by email at imvreli@ghlackrock com
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¢!
BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited
2021 12 125,001 2,022
2022 31
161.76
1995 19
BlackRock, Inc.
(¢
2022 31 2,000
G
State Street Bank International GmbH, Luxembourg Branch
2022 2,551,219,930.93 3,514 5,606
2022 31
137.76
2009
10
4
J.P. Morgan SE, Luxembourg Branch
2022 22 175

220 4,108 307

Societas Europaea
Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht, BaFin
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To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment

Series 35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the* Fund” )
and of each of its Portfolios, which comprise the statement of net assets and the portfolio
of investments as at 31 January 2021 and the statement of operations and changes in net
assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and of each of its Portfolios as at 31 January 2021, and of
the results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the* Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and I1SAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the" Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit
of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including
International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information
The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but

does not include the financial statements and our Independent Auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an Independent Auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with I1SAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted

for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Fund®s Management Company.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
Independent Auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Independent Auditor®s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Justin Griffiths, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

20 May 2021

265/276



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1855

avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

2022 31
2022 31
2016 23 2016
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
1SA
2016 23 CSSF 1SA

1ESBA Code

266/276

35

23
CSSF

CSSF

35A,



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016 23 CSSF
I1SA

2016 23 CSSF 1SA

267/276



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 25

268/276



EDINETOOOO

0000000000000000000000000000000(E31087)
0000000000000000000

To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the* Fund” )
and of each of its Portfolios, which comprise the statement of net assets and the portfolio
of investments as at 31 January 2022 and the statement of operations and changes in net
assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and of each of its Portfolios as at 31 January 2022, and of
the results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the* Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the* Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit
of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including
International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information
The Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but

does not include the financial statements and our Independent Auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an Independent Auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with I1SAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted

for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Fund®s Management Company.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
Independent Auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Independent Auditor®s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Justin Griffiths, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

25 May 2022
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To the sole Shareholder of

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A. (the

“ Company” ), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the
income statement, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance
and of its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the* Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under those Law and standards are further described in the

“ Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are also independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the annual report but does not include the financial
statements and our Independent Auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and for such
internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
Independent Auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law of
23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our Independent Auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our Independent Auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Director™s report is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Sandrine Muller, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

12 May 2022
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